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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Avanse Financial Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Avanse Financial Services Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the yvear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics'
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
suificient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters
were addressed in the context cf our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the proceduras performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

ull
&1
- f

L

SR Batiitai B Co. LLP. & Limited Linbisty Partfershig wlih LLP [dertdy No. 4404204
Rego, Gitice D 22 Camae Stracd, Binch 8, 3rd Fisee, Kalkata-4 00 016



SR Barusor& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

| Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

7 & 39.4 of the financial statements)

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109
Financial Instruments requires the Company to
provide for impairment of its financial loans
using the expected credit loss (ECL) approach.
ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their
life, considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions and other factors which could impact
the credit quality of the lean portfolio.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
and estimate have been applied by the
management for:

» Staging of loans (ie. classification in
'significant increase in credit risk’ (“SICR')
and ‘default’ categories based on past due
status or qualitative assessment;

* Grouping of the loan portfolic under
homogenous pools in order to determine
probability of default on a collective basis;

* The Company has also recorded a
management overlay as part of its ECL, to
reflect among other things an increased risk
of deterioration in macro-economic factors
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Given the
unigue nature and scale of the economic
impact of this pandemic, the management
overlay |s based on various uncertain
wariables, which could result in actual credit
loss being different than that being
estimated.

In view of the high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL and the
overall significance of the impairment loss
allowance to the financial statement,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, it is a
key audit matter,

Read and assessed the Company's
accounting policy for impairment of
financial assets and its compliance
with Ind AS 109 and the governance
framewaork approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank
of India guidelines issued on March
13, 2020.

Evaluated the management
estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and

related assumptions and tested
around data extraction, validation
and computation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of
loans based on their past-due status.
Tested samples of performing loans
to assess whether any SICR or loss
indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under higher
stages.

We performed procedures to test the
inputs used in the ECL computation,
on a sample basis.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Tested assumptions used by the
management in determining the
overlay for macro-economic and
other factors.

Assessed disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses.

Information technoloegy (IT) systems and contro

Is

The financial accounting and reporting systems
of the Corporation are fundamentally reliant on
IT systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
. program development and changes, access to

» The aspects covered in the assessment of
IT General Controls comprised: {i) User

Access

Management; (i) Program

Change Management; (iii) Other related
ITGCs - to understand the design and test

the

controls

operating effectiveness of such
in respect of information
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Key audit matters

programs and data and 1T operations, are
required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment could
result in a material misstatement of the financial
accounting and reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the |IT environment, the
assessment of the general |T contrels and the
application controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financial information is
considered to be a key audit matter.

SVSEEFI‘IS that are important to financial
reporting ("in-scope applications™).

Tested the changes that were made to
the in-scope applications during the audit
period to assess changes that have
impact on financial reporting.

Tested the periodic review of access
rights, inspected requests of changes to
systems for appropriate approval and
authorization.

Performed tests of controls (including
other compensatory controls, wherever

applicable) on the IT application centrols
and IT dependent manual controls in the
system.

= Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of compensating controls,
where deficiencies were identified and,
where necessary, extended the scope of
our substantive audit procedures.

Other Infarmation

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in deing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, Including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
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responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assassing the Company's
ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that am audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

»  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur cenclusions are hased on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeqguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2021, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on May 06, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinian, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
segparate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;
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(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable [osses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investar
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities identified in
any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) aor
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasanable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Far S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
4CAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors’' Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Avanse Financial Services Limited

Re: Avanse Financial Services Limited ("the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the bocks
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a}{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing fuil particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets,

(b Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) have been
physically verified by the management during the vear and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of ali the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including
Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

(i) {a) The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and,
accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause 3(iiXa) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i (b As disclosed in Note 42.3 (XII) h to the financial statements, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in agagregate
from banks and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the
normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iin) (a) Since, the principal business of the Company is to give loans, the requirement
to report on clause 3(jii}a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Giy (bl During the year the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant
of all Joans to companies and other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest,

iy {c) In respact of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company
as part of its business of providing education leans to individual customers and
education infrastructure loans to non-individual customers, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the
Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not
practicable to furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date for repayment or
receipt and the extent of delay in this report (as suggested in the Guldance Nate
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{1ii) (d)
(iii) (e)
(iii) {fy
(iv)

(v)

{vi)

iy (a)
(vip (B
(wiii)

on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for
reporting under this clause), in respect of loans and advances which were nat
repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in the normal
course of lending business. Further, except for loans where there are delays or
defaults in repayment of principal and / or payment of interest as at the balance
sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset classification /
staging in Note 7 to the financial statements in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also
regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the total amount overdue
for more than ninety days as at March 31, 2022 and the details of the number of
such cases, are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. In such instances,
in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery
of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

Since, the principal business of the Company is to give loans, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii}(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms aor period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which
pravisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable
and hence not commented upon.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted
any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73
to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3¢\) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of geods and services tax, provident fund, income tax, cess,
and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordinaly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(viiD) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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%)

(ix)

(ix)
(i)

(ix)

(ix)

()

(i}

{x)

{xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{lv)

(xiv)

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(H

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

{c)

(a)

(b}

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpase for which the loans were obtained.

On overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3ix)f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the reguirement
to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year
under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT
=4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.
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{xv)

Oovid

Cxvi)

(xvi)

{xvid

Cxvib

(xwiii)

(xix)

{xx)

(al

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1234 (2 of 1934).

The Company has not conducted any Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the requlations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no other companies forming part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year or the immediately
preceding financial year.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year
pursuant to the requirements of the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory
Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021, issued
by the Reserve Bank of India, and there are no issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as ta the future viabllity of the
Company and our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of
other than ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule V1l to the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act), till the date of the report. However, the period for such
transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the financial year as permitted under
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till
the date of our report. This matter has been disclosed in Note 34 to the financial
statements.
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(x) {b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section
{6} of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 34
to the financial statements.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

oo 25—

per Shrawan Jalan .
Fartner S/
Membership Number: 102102
UDIM: 22102102AILRYR3499
FPlace of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditors' 'Eepnrf of even date on the linancial Statements of
Avanse Finaneial Service Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls undar Clavuse (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Secfion 143 of the
ComgEpanies Act, 2013

We nhave audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Avanse
Financial Services Limited (“the Company"') as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Companay for the year ended-on that date.

Management's Respansiblity for Internal Financial Contrils

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and malntalning internal financial
cantrads based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential compopents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intarnal Flnancial Controls Over Financizl Repnrtmq issued by the instituie of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI™). These responslbilities Include the design, Implementstion and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderty and efficiant conduct of it§ business, including .adherence to the Company's pollcies,
the saféguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable -financial
|nfnrma_t|nn, as reguired under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibllity

Qur responsibility ‘is ta express an opinion on the Company's internal finandial controis with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls. Over Financial Reporiing (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143¢18) of the Act,
to the extent applicabie to an audit of internaj financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those
Standards gnd the Guidance Nate réguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal Financial
cantrols with refarence to these financial statements was established. and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material Fespects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to bbtaln audit evidence dbout-the adequaty of the
mternal financial controls with referénce to these flnancial statemenis and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial contrels with reference to these financlal
statements, -assessing the risk that a materlal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procadures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment df the- risks of materlal
misstateémerit of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or efror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basls for ailr audit opinion on the Campany’s internal financial controls with reference to. these
financial statements.

Meaning ef Internal Financial Controls with referenceé to thesa Financial 5tatements

A company's internal financiai confrols with reference: to financial statements is a process.
designed to provide reasonable assurance regardjng the reliability of financial reporting and the.
preparation of finanglal statements for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted
~accounting principles. A cdmpany's internal financial controts with reference to financial
5f3‘gements includes these policies and procedures that (1} peitain to the mdintenance of records
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SR Barisoir & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to [standalone]
financial statements, Including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinien, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 22102102AILRYR3499
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2022



AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
BALAMCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakh)
Farticulars . Note Mo.| As at March 31, 2022 Az at March 31, 2021
ASSETS
I Financial assets
(a) Derivative financial instruments 350.89 -
(b} Cash and cash equivalenis a 53,048.50 42,638.25
{c) Bank balances olher than (b) above 5 268459 1,0113.99
(dy Loans 7 4 71 5098 64 293,084 63
(&) Invastments g 1,273.50 5,602 06
{f Trade Receivables i 269.19 25945
{a) Other financial assels 2] 339.44 339.04
539,574 94 3,42,837.42
Il Mon-Financial assets
(a) Current fax assets (net) 2T6.TE 17419
(B} Deferred tax assels {net) 10 1,914 22 1,195.28
) Property, plant and eguipmenl 1 652 98 651.63
fdy Cther intangible assels 11 77566 RAT 44
(e} Intangible assels under development 11 10797 a2.65
(fr Right of use assels 11 43778 i B3
(g} Cther non-financial assels 12 1,494 98 1,107.27
3.720.35 4,872.03
Total Assets 5.45,205.29 3,47,709.45
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
| Financial Liabilities
(&) Derivative financial instruments - 180,31
b} Trade payables 13
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 37.70 841
- fatal outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small 3,378.85 1.745.74
enlerprises
(e Debt sscurities 14 123,224 54 87 368.59
) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15 23787090 1,37,088 82
(&) Other finaricial liabilities 16 78.5989.63 16, 36096
4,43,501.62 2,52,762.83
] Nen-Financial Liabilities
(a} Currant tax liabilities (nal) 192 38 atg 74
i Provisions 17 74,62 43 66
(c) Dther nion-financial liabilities 18 560.25 132 89
B27.25 786.29
] EQUITY
(a) | Equily share capilal 19 8.255.14 8.25919
(b | Other equity 20 u2. 70723 85,901 14
Total equity 1,00,966.42 94,160,313
Total liabilities and equity 5.45,295.28 3,47,708.45
The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of lhe financial slatements T 4as

I terms of our repoet sltached
For §. K. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chunered Accountants

ration No, 30 1003E/E3GO005

Shrawan Jalun
Fartner

Membership No. 102102
Place : Mumbai

Drate : May U3, 2022
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AVANSE FINANGIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STA F 55 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
{Rs. in Lakh)
For the yesr ended For the year endad
N il
i s e March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I Income
Revenue from operalions
Interest income 21 47,5151 41 238 66
Met gain on fair value changes 22 a4 43 452 06
Oiher operating income 23 2,918.95 2.411.34
Total revenus frem operations 50,828.49 43, 802.06
Cther income 24 2568 a7.07
Total income 50,854.17 43,888.13
1} Expenses
Finance casts 25 27.388.70 25 60817
Impairment on financial insirumeants (Expecled credil loss) 26 1,90817 237142
Employee benefits expense 27 6.847.15 503373
Depraciation and amortisation expense 11 1,287.75 1,384 69
Other expenses 28 5,076.42 3,735.35
Total expenses 42,308.19 38,034.36
n Profit before tax 8,645.98 4,854.77
W Tax expense
Current tax 29 2.983.45 1.682.95
Defarred tax 29 (758.05) (445.45)
Tax adjustmeant in respect of earlier vear - (169.58)
Total lax expense 2,225.40 1,064.91
v Net profit for the year 6,320.50 3,789.86
Vi Other comprehansive income
(A) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{] Actuarial gain on post retirement beneflt plans 18.52 58.40
(i) Income tax on abave 4.16) (17.27)
Subtotal (&) 12.36 51.18
{B) [tams that will be reclassified (o profl or loss
(1) Fair value gain/{loss) on derivative financal instrument 136.91 (107.81)
{ii} Income tax an abovea {34 98] 2743
Subtotal (B) 103.95 {B0.68)
Total other comprehensive income (A+B) 116,21 (29.40)
Vil |Total comprehensive income 6.436.89 3,760.37
Vil |Earnings per equity share n
{Face value of Rs. 10/- @ach)
Basic (Rs.) 768 4.58
Diluted (Rs ) 7.65 4.59
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemenls 110 45

Partner

In terms of our report attached

For & R. Balliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Registration No, 301003EE3R0005
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ENT OF CASH FL FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Rs. in Lakh)
For the year ended For the year snded
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 202
A Cash flow fram operating activities
Profif befora tax 8.545.08 4 854,77
Adjustment for:
Interest incoms on loans (47 413 .88) (36 424 00)
Deprecistion and amoriisalion expenses 1,287.75 1,384 58
Net gain on fir value changes (realised) (394 43) (#52.06)
Interest expense on borrowings 24,667 05 2288022
Frovisien for impairment on financial iInstruments 146538 22M.78
Interest on fied deposits [1,470.14) {2,985.28)
Baddabts written off 442 78 139,84
ESOF Expanzas ase20 a0s.00
Finance cost (n Lease Liablity 85,52 105,69
Actuarial loss on post retirement benefl plans 16.52 66,40
Loss on sele of fixed assel - Q.18
Operating foss bafore working capital changes {12,393.15) (7.789.97)
Operaticnal cash fMows from interest
Interes! received on leans 48,548 30 34 T40 83
Irterest paid on borrowings (24.861.02} (21 667 a8)
Working capital changes
Adjestment for:
{Increase] in Inans {1.70 556 81) (13280020}
{Inzrease] in Other non-financial agsets {367 68) (40391}
Decrease in financial 2ssets 2810 147,53
{Incregse] in trade raceivables [9.75) (11980}
Increass / (Decreasa) in financial Labilties 6226048 {B.472.97)
Inzrease in trade payables 1.66238 B28.58
Increase in non financial liabilities 227,38 111,10
Inerease ! (Decrease) in Provisions 30,56 [366.90)
Cash (used in) operations {1,068,422.84) (18,422.58)
Direct tarnes paid (net) {3,303 38) (1,383.64)
Nat cash (used in) operating activitios {1,09,726.23) {17 606.23)
B Cash flow from investing activities
Invesimeants in mulual fund units (2,37 488 82) [2.21 893 88)
Sale of mutuad fund units 243,385 11 2.79.444.55
Investments n T-Bill (1,800.00) -
Inferast received on bank deposits 1,470.14 2985.28
Purchase of property, plant & sguipment and intangible assels (926 85) (795,44}
Sale of property, plant & squipment - 018
Bank teposit not considered as cash and ¢ash equivalents {nel) {1,660 60) (11,94}
Met cash generated from investment activities 3,459.18 B,629.55
c Cash flow from financing activitics
Procesds from long-term bormowings 7.01,169.85 57 54900
Re payment of long-term borrowings 175,547 44) {70,895.39)
Procaeds from short-term bamewings (net) 2.511.92 (11.18)
Finance cost in Lease Ligbility [A5E.E1} (450 53)
Met cash generated from [ (used in} financing activities 1,26,677 42 (13,808, 11)
Me1 (Decrease) ! Increase in Cash and cash equivalents 2041038 (21.684 78)
Cash end cash equivalents at the beginning of he year 42,838.25 64,623 02
Gash and cash equivalents al the end of the period 63,048.64 42 B38.25
Motes:

1. Receipts and payments for ransaction in wiich the turnover is quick, the amounts are (arge, and the maturities are short are presanted on nat hasis

in sccardance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows

2. Cach Mlow statement has been prepared under indinect mathod as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013
3. For diselesure relating to changes in iabiliies arising from fingnging activities refer nete 3364

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 45
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

GES M E AT M

&, EQUITY SHARE CARITA|
(e, in Lakh)
Balance as al Changes. in equity | Restaled badance at| Changes N saity | gy junce as at
Particulars share capltal dus 1o | the baginning of the fshare capilal during
01-Aps-20 prior pariod erar CLETENT yegr the yaar I1-Mar-21
Equity Share Capifal B 258,19 E B 325619
BalEncn nsar Changes In eqully |Restated balance al] Changes in equity Blsncesaat |
Parbculare share capital due to | the beginning of the [share eapital during
G1-Apr21 prior peried srmor curent yoar tha year MMardd
Equily Sharg Capital B255 1 “ - - Basgy
THER ITY
{R=. in Lakh)]
Reserves and Surplus
Tenal
Securities Premivm | Retalned Earnings | Goneral Reserve Stack Dptions Lash Fluw Hodge | Siatutory Reserve o
Resarve Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2020 75,923,217 4.286.00 0,14 7000 1,248.37 B1,734.70
Proflt for Lhe year - 3 785 66 = - 3 TREHf
Changes In accouimg policylpror perod H X
SITONE n
Restaled balana al the beginning of tha b . E. Z .
eioUE reporting paniod
Transfarrad rem st#ement of praiil and lass (757 &1 - - E 757,97
Charge for fhe vear in respect of Stock .

: - B = 405 5 5
Opfidris 88 405 99
Othar comprehenzive inceme for the year . 51 15| [ERGTT - 128 40
Balante as al March 31, 2021 TE 523,27 7,469 04| 2,14 484,99 (B4 63} 2,104.34 B5,801.14
Profil far the year - B 320 - - - - & 320 55
Charges in accounting poliey/orier perfad
errors - : = 5 o
Restaled balanes 31 1ha baginning of the j - ~ A . o
aurtant meparting period 3
Translemed from statement of profit and loss X 11284 13 y J 126413 i
Chawge for the year in respect of Slock
Aptions = 369 201 3 - 582
Ofher comprahensive incoma for the yess - 1236 - - 103 95 11631
Balango as at March 31, 2022 75,923.27 12,637.60 ota 854,18 2127 3, 368,46 81, 107.23

The Beeampanying nofes Tomm an olegral part of thi inencial satemerds 1 o 45
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AVANSE FINANMCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Cor e Information

Avanse Financial Servicas Limiled (the 'Company’) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the prowisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, The Debentures of the Company are listed on BSE Limited. The Company is primarily engaged in the buysiness of
financing Educalion Loans to Sludents and Education Infrastructure Loans. The Company Is registered with the Reserve Bank af India (RBI)
and Ministry of Corparate Affairs. The registration details are as follows:

REl B-12.01704

Corporate ldentity Mumber (CIN) UST120RH1982PLCOGB060

The Company is Systemalically Important Non-daposit laking Non-Banking Financial Company. The ragisterad office of the Company is 001
& 002 Fulcrum Building, ‘A" Wing, Sahar Read, Near Hyatt Ragency Hotal, Andher| (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400 095,

The financial statements of the Company Tor the year endad March 31, 2022 were approved for issue in accordance with tha resolution of the
Board of Directors on May 5, 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2,1 Basis of Accounting and Preparation of Financial statements
Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time o ime and nolified under seciion 133 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 (the Act) aleng
wath ather relevanl provisions of the Act, the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Imporant Non-Deposil
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018 (the NBFC Master Directions') and notification for
Implementation of Indian Accounting Standard vide cireular RBI2013-20M170 DOR{NBFC).CC FD. No. 108/22 10.106/2019:20 dated 13 March
2020 {'REI Natification far implementation of Ind AS') issued by REI The Company uses accrual basis of accounting,

Hislorical cost convention
The financial statements have besn preparad on the historlcal cost basis except for certain financial instruments thal are measurad at fair
values at the end of each reporting period. as axplained in tha accounting policies balow,

Historical cost is generally based an the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and services,

Valuation governance framewark
Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer & lisbility in an ordery transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardiass of whether that price is direclly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the charactenstics of the asset or liability that markel
paricipants would lake those characterstics into accounl when pricing the asset or lizbility at the measurement date. Falr value forl
measurement andlor disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such & basis, excepl for share based payment
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing ransactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that
have some similarities o fair value but are not fair value in use in Ind AS 36

Valuation principles
Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree o which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are abservable and the significance of the inpuls lo the fair value measurement in its entirely, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inpuls are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Gompany can sccess 2t
measuremeni dale

Level 2 inputs are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within level 1, 1hat are observable for the asset or ligbility, ither directly or
indiractly: and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or labilitiss

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes to financial statement for the year ended March 21, 2022

2.2 Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

i, Property, plant and equipmeant (FPE) s recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will llow to the
Company and the cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. PPE is sialed al orginal cost net of taxw/duly credits availed, if any, less
accumulsted depreciation and cumulative impalrment, IT any. Cost includes professional fees related to the acquisition of FPE.

Deprecialion [ amorlization is recognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of respective assels as undsr;

Category of Assels Useful Life
Fumiture & Fixturas 6 yiars
Computer Hardware 3 years
Wehicle 4 years
Cffice Equipment 5 years

Assels cosfing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of capitalizalion.
Leasehold improvement is amaortized on SLM over the lzase term subject to & maximum of 36 months.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and deprecialion melhod are reviewed at the end of ezch reporiing pariod, with the effect of any
changes in estimale accounted for on a prospective basis,

An ilem of propery, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected to arise from the
conlinued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an ftem of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceads and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit ar loss.

ii. Intangible:

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the fultre economic benefils that are attributable to the asset will flow 1o the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at onginal cost nel of laxduly credits availed, ifl
ary, less ascumulaled amorlisation and cumulative impairment, Administrative and ofher general overhead expenses thal are specifically
attributable to acquisilion of intangible assets are allocated and capilzlised a5 a part of the cosl of the inlangible assels.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basls over the estimaled useful life of 3 years. The method of amortisation and useful life are
reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounled for on 8 prospective hasis

Amuarlisalion on Impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as to allocate the assel's
ravised carmying amount ovar its remaining useful fife,

An Inlanalble assel is derecognised on disposal, or when no future sconomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognilion of an intangible assel, measured as the diffsrence belween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assel, are recognisad in profit or loss when Lhe assst is derscognised

Impairment en non-financial assets

As at the end of each year, the Company reviews the carrying amount of ils non-financial assets that is PFE and intangible lo determing
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.

An assal is considered as impaired when on the balance sheet dale there are indicalions of impairment In the carmying amount of the assets,
or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the assel belongs, exceeds iis recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the assets’ net
sefling prce and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the level of recoverable amount and the reduction is recognised as an
impairment loss In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (er a8 cash-generating unil) is incressed 1o the ravised
estimale of its recoverable amount, bul so that the increased carrying smount dozs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment less been recognised for the assel (or cash-generaling unit) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recegnisad immadiately In profit or loss.




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideralion received or receivable. Bevenue is reduced for estimated cuslomer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

a. Interast Income

Tha Company recognises interast income using effective interest rate (EIR) on all financial assets subzequently measurad under amortised
cost or fair value through other comprahansive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considerng all costs and incomes aliributable 1o
aoquisition of a inancal asset or assumption of a financial lability and it represents & rate thal exactly discounts estimated Tuture cash
paymenis/receipts through the expacted life of the financial asselfinancial liability to the gross carmying amount of a financial assel or to the
amortized cost of a financial |iabiity

The Company calculales interest income by applying the EIR to the gross samying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assels, In case of credit-impaired financial assels. the Company recognises inlerest incoma on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of
the financial asset al EIR. If Ihe financial asset Is no longer cradit-impairad, the Company reverts o calsulating interest income on a gross|

basis.
Delayed payment interest (penal interest and Ihe like) levied on custormers for delay in repaymentsinon payment of contractual cashflows is

recognised on certainly of recovery.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly atiribuiable to
the specific lending arrangemant, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For inancial assets at FVTPL, transaction costs are
recognised in profit or logs at initial recognition.

b. Fees and Commission Income
Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part ot EIR. The fee & commission ncluded in this part of tha
statament of profit and loss include among other things fees charged for servicing a loan, commission on forex and insurance commissian.

Fae and Commission Income are recognised after the performance obligation in the contract is fulfilled and commission incomea such as
insurance commission and fee incoma, ele. are recognised on peint in Ume or over the period basis, as applicabla,

¢. Investment Income
The gains/ losses on sale of investmenls are recognised in the Stalement ol Profii and Loss on the lrade date. Gain or loss on sale of
inveslments is determined after consideration of cost on a weighted average basis.

2.4 Leases

The Company evaluales each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lsase as defined under Ind AS 116,

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses, whaiher the contracl is, or containg, & lease. A contract is. or contains, a leass if the contract involves--

a) the vse of an identilied asset,

b) the right lo oblain substantiafly all the economic benefits from use of the identified assol, and

) the right to direct the: use of the identifled assst.

The Cormpany af the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use {RolU) asset al cost and a correspanding lease liability, for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, axcept for leasas with term of less than twelve months (short term) and lowsvalue assets.

Cerain leasa armangemeants includes the oplions to extend or lerminale the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and leass
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercissd

The cost of the right-cf-use assets comprises the amounlt of the inilial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or
befora the inception dale of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the rght-of-use assats is
measurad al cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, it any. The right-of-use assets s depreclated using
the siraight-line method from the commencement date aver the sharter of lease term or useful lifa of right-of-use assets.

Right of use assels are evalualed for recoverability whenever evenls or chanpes in circumsiances indicate that their carmying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the puposze of impairment lesting, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value-in-use] is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does nol generate cash Nows that are largely independent of those
from oiher assels. In such cases. the recoverable amount s determined fer the Cash Generating Unit (CGUJ to which the asset belongs.

For [ease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. The lease payments are discounted using the inferest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate is readily determined, if that rale is not readily
determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borowing rate.

The Company recogrizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liabllity as an adjustment 1o the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying
emount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liablity, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of profit and loss.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease paymenis as an operaiing expense on a siraight-line basis over the
lease tarm.

Lease liability has been presented in Nole 16 "Other Financial Liabiliies™ and ROU asset has baan presemed in Mote 11 “Property, Plant and
Equipment® and lease paymenls have bean classified as financing cash flows. -
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2.5 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs thal are allbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets as defined in Ind AS 23 are capitalized
as a part of costs of such assets, A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its Inlended use

Interest expenses are caloufated using the EIR and all other Borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and Ioss in the period
in which they are incurred

2.6 Employee Benefits

Retirement bensafit costs and termination benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Paymenls to defined contribulion plans are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year whan employeas have
rendered service entiting them to the contributions. The Company pays provident fund conlrbutions to publicly administered provident funds
as per Iocal requlations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contrbutions are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribulions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund or a reduciion in tha fulure payment is available

Defined Benefit Obligation
The Company's Gratuity liatdity under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 7972 are determined on the basis of actuanal valuation made st the end
of each financial year using the projactad unit cradit method.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that amployaes have
eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefil obligattons is performed annually by & qualifisd acluary using the projected unit credil method. When the
caloulation results in a polential asset for the Company, the recognised assel is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any fulure refunds fram the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan

Re measursment of the net defined benefil iability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding inisrast)
and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediataly in Other Comprebensive Income (DC1), Met interest
expenze (income) on the net defined liabiily (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used lo measure the nat defined liattility
{assel), o lhe nel defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking inta account any changes as a result of contribution and
benefit payments durng the year, Net inlerest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statemant of]
profit and loss.

When the benefils of a plan are changed or when a plan is cuntailed, the resulting charge in benedit thal relates to past service or the gain or
loss on curtziiment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gaing and losses on the sstllement
of a defined benafit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided al the undiscounted amount of the benefils expected to be paid
in exchange for that service. A liability s reeognised for the amount expected 1o be paid if the Compary has a present legal or constructive
obligation 1o pay this amount 85 a result of past service provided by the employes and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These
bersfils include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected o ooour within twelve months aftar the end af the
period in which the emplayee renders the related service

Other Long-term employee benefits
Liabiliies recognised in respect of other long-term emplayee benefits are measured a1 the presant value of the astimated fulure cash outflows
expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

2.7 Income Tax

Income lax expense repfesents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Curreni and delerred tax are recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to ilems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or dirsctly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred fax are also recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity respectively.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable /s based on the taxable profit for the year of the Company. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of ilems of income or expense that are taxable or deductitle in olher years and items that ars
never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting periad.

Deferred Tax

Deferrad tax is recognised on temporary differences befween the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities in the Company's financial
statements and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of faxable profil. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable lemporary diflerences. Deferred lax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it s
probable that laxsble profits will be available against which those deductible ternporary differences can be utiised. Such deferred tax aszels
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assals
and liabilities in a tranzaction that affects neither the taxable profil nor the accounting profit. In addition, defered lax Habilites are not
recagnised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, -
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated wilh investments in subsidiares, excepl where the
Company is able to control the reversal of temporary difference and it is probable that tha temporary difference will not reverse In the
foreseeable fulure, Defered tax assels arsing from deduciible temporary differences associated with such investmaents and interasts are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differances and they are expeciad to reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred lax assels is reviewed at the end of each repariing period and reduced (o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of lhe assets to be recoversd,

Deferred tax lizbililles and assels are measured at the tax rates that are expecied Lo apply in the penod in which tha liability is seitled or the
assel is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivaly enacted by the end of the raporting period.

Deferred tax asseis and liabiliies are offsal when there is a legally enforceable right to set off cument lax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate [0 income {axes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to setile its current tax assets and
liabilities on a nel basis.

2.8 Goods and Service Tax Input Credit
Goods and Services tax inpul credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the supply of goods or service received is accounied
and when lhere |5 no uncartainiy in availing/utilising the cradiis,

2.9 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Frovisions are recognised only when:

i. an enlity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii. itis probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required lo sellle the ohligation; and
ili. & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation

These are reviewed gl each balance sheel date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Further, long term provisions are delermined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the lizbility, The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. A provision for anerous conlracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expactad cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cosl of continuing with the contract. Beiore a provision is established, the Company
recognises any impairmant loss on the assels associsted with that contract

Contingent kiabiily is disclosed in cdse of,

l. & prasent abligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to sellle the obligation;
and

ii, & present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

2.10 Commitmeants

Commitments are future fabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

i, estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for,

ii. uncalled liabllity on sharas and other investments partly paid;

iii. Other non-cancelfable commitments, it any, fo the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management,
Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are nol disclosed (o avald excessive details.

211 Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared sagregating the cash flows into aperating, investing and financing activilies. Cash flow from operating
activities is reported using indirect methad adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the perod in inventories and operating recelvables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature
il. non-cash tems such as depreciation, prowvsions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed  profits
of assoclates and Joint ventures, and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.
Cash and cash eguivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available far
general Use as on the date of Balance Sheet,

2.12 Segments

Based on "Management Approach® as defined by Ind AS 108, The Chiel Cperating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the “Operating
Segments". Operating segments are reported (N a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided o the CODM. The accounting
palicies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policles adopted for the Company. Revenue and expenses have
heen identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operaling aclivities of the segment. Income | costs which ralate lo the
Company as a whole and aré not allocable o segments on a reasonable basis have been included under Unallocated Income / Costs.
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2.13 Financial Instruments

Recognition of Financial Insfruments

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liakilitizs, Financial assets and liakilities are recognized when the Company
becomes the party Lo the contraclual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets pamarily compnse of loans and advances, premises and
other deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabildies primarily comprise of borrowings and trade payables.

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosls and revenues that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financizal liabililies (olher than financial assels and firancial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilitles, as apprepriate, on iniizl recognition. Transaclion
cosls and revenues directly atlributable to the acquisition of finencial assels or financial liabilities al FVTPL are recognised immedialely in
profit ar loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for such difference as follows:
= |ffair value is evidenced by 8 guoled price in an active markel for an identical assel or liability or based on a valualion technigue thal uses
only data from observable markets, then the difference Is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition {i.e. day 1 profil or loss),

« In all other cases, lhe fair value will be adjusted Lo bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by
including it in the initial carmnving amount of the asset or liability ),

After Initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the Statemeant of profit and loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that
it arises from a change in a facior [including ime) that market parlicipants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Cash Flow Hedge

The Company designates certain fareign exehange currency swap contracls as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreion exchange
exposure on external commercial borrowings When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair vahie of the derivalive is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulzted in the cash flow hedge reserve.
Any ineflective portion of changes m the fair value of the derivative is récognised immedialely in the net profit in the Staterment of Profit and
Loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meels the criteria for hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, If the hedging instrument
axpires or is sold lerminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrumenl recognized in cash flow hedge reseve till
ihe period of the hedge was effective, remains in cash flow hedge reserve until the ECB is derecognised. The cumulative gain or loss
previoulsy recognized in the cash flow hedge reserve is transferred to the net profit in the Stiatement of Profit and Loss upon the
derecognition of the hedged iterm

244

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Aszets:
All recognised financial assers that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are requirsd o be subsequently measured at amorised cost o fairl
value on the basis of the enlity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets

Classification of Financial Assets:

= Debtinstrumenis thal are held within a business model whose objeclive is to collect the contractual cash flows, and thal have conlractual
cash flows that are solely paymenls of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at
amortised cost;

+ Al other debt instruments (2.g debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and eguily investiments are subsequenlly
measured al FVTPL.

However, the Company may make the following irevocable election [ designation at Initial recogrition of a financial asset on an asset-by-
assel basis:

= The Company may irevocably elscl to present subssquent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is neither held for frading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an scquirer in a buginess combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, in QCL and

+  The Company may irevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amorlised cost or FYTOC! criteria as measured at FVTPL 1
doing so eliminates ar signiicantly redures an accaunting mismatch {referrad to as the fair value oplion)

A financial asset s held for trading i

= Ithas been acquirsd prircipally for the purpose of selling it in the near term: or

= Oninlitial recognition it is pant of 2 partfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company managss fogether and has 2 recent actual
paltermn of short-term profit-taking, or

= Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee
Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FYTQCI

The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the confractual cash flow characteristios of the
individual assel basis and the Company’s business model for managing the asset

Far an asset o be classified and measured al amortised cost or al FVTOCI, its confractual terms should give risa 1o cash fliows that are
maeting Solely Payments of Principal & Intarest (3PP} tast.

For tha purpose of SPPI tast, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recagnition. Thal principal amount may change ovar the
lIfe of the finansial asset (e i there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time Vaiug ob money, for the
creditrisk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular perod of time and for other basllc,'{émmg Lsks-ahd cosis, as
wallas aprafil margin. The SPP) assessment is made in the currency in which the financial assel is denominatelf =/
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Centractual cash flows that are SPPI are consislent with a basic lending arrangement. Conlraclual terms that introduce exposure 1o risks of
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated 1o a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure o changes in equity prices or
commeodity prices, do not give rise to contraciual cash flows that are SPPL An originated or an acqulred financial asset can be a basic
lending arrangement irrespeclive of whether it is a loan in its legal farm.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets Is fundamantal to tha classification of a financial asset The Company
determines the business models at a level thal reflects how financial assets are managed a1 individual basis and collectively lo achieve a
particular business objective,

When a debl instrument measured at FVTOCH is derecognised, the cumulative gainfloss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity nvestment dssignaled as measured al FVTOCH, the cumulative gainfloss praviously
recognised in OCI is not subsequentiy reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debtinstruments that are subssquently measured at amortised cost or al FYTOC! are subject to Impairment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL)

Debt instruments that do nol meet the amartised cost criteria or FVTOC| aritéria ars measured at FVTPL. In addition, debl instruments that
meet the amortised cosl critaria or the FVTOCI critenia but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FYTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments thal meel tha FVTOC criteria may be designated as at FYTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or recognition incansistency that would anse
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured al fair value st the end of each reporing perlod, with any gains or losses arising on remeasuremant
recognised in profil or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss Incorporates any dividend or interest sarned on the financial
assel, Dividend on financial assels al FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right te receive the dividends is established, il is probable
that the ecenomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recavery of parl of cost of the
investmant and the amount of dividand can be measured raliably,

Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assels changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified. The
classification and measurement requirements related to the new calegory apply prospectively from the first day of tha first reporting peried
following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Gompany's financial assets.

During the current financlal year and previcus accounting period there was no changs in the business model under which the Company holds
financial assets and thersfore no reclassifications were made. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy
on Modification and derecognifion of financial assets described balow.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) Is de-recognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial
aszet have expired. The Company also de-recognises the financial assel if it has fransferred the financial assel and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition. The Company has transferred the financizl asset il, and only if, gither; - It has transfetrrad its contractual rights ta recaive cash
flows from the financial @sset Or - It retains the rights 1o the cash flows, but has assumed an nbligation to pay the received cash flows in full
withoul material delay to a third pary under a ‘pass-through’ amangement. Pass-through arrangements are transactions whersby the
Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financial as=zet {the 'original assel), but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows 1o one or more entities (the 'eventual reciplents'), when all of the following lhree condilions are mel;

1. The Company has no abligation to pay amounts 1o the eventusl recipients unless Tt has collected equivalent ameunts from the otiginal
assel, excluding shori-term advances with the right 1o full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at markal rates.

2.The Company cannat sell or pledge the original asset other than as secwily to the eventual reciplents.

3. The Company has lo remit any cash lows it collects on behall of the eventual recipients without material deiay.

In addition, the Company is not entitied to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash of cash squivalents including interest
garned, during the period betwean the collection date and the date of required remittanice to the eveniuzl recipients. A transfer only qualifies
far de-recognition if either - The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or The Company has neither
transferred nor ratzined substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. The Company considers
control to be transferrad if and only if, the lransferes has the praclical ability 1o sell the asset in its entirety 1o 2n unrelated third parly and is
able to exercise thal ability unilaterally and witheul Imposing additional restrictions on the transfer, When tha Company has neither
transferred nor retained substanfially all the risks and rewards and has refained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised
only lo the exient of the Company's continuing involvement, In which case, the Company also recognises an associaled liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained,
On derecognifion of @ financizl asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying amounl {measured at the date of derecagnition)
and (b} the consideration recaivad (including any new asset ohtained 255 any new liability assumead) is recognised in the statement of profil
or loss account.

Impairment of financial assets
Owvendew of lhe Expecled Credit Loss principlas
The Company records allowance for expected credil losses Tor all Ioans, other debt financial assets not held at FUTPL, legeather with loan

commitments and financial guarantee contracts. in this saction all refarred to as ‘financial instruments’. Ecuily Instruments are not subject to
impairmant under (nd AS 109
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Expected credit losses (ECL) are 2 probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. Credit loss |s the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects 1o
receive (e, all cash shorfalls), discounted al the orginal effechive inlerest rale (or credit-adjusted effective Interest rate for purchased or
originated credil-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
Instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal 1o the lifetime expected credit Iosses if the credit
nisk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since inifial recoanition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not|
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the less allowance for ihat finansial instrument at an amount equal o
12-month expectad credit losses, 12-month expected credit losses are porlion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default oceurs within the 12 months after the reporting data and thus, are not cash shortizlls that are
pradicted over the next 12 months.

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument  the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal lo the 12-month EGL.
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The Company measures ECL for slege 3 assels (as defined below) on an individual basis, The measurement of the Ioss allowance is based
on the present value of the asset's expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR.

Imparment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modificalion losses or gains thal are accountad for as an
adjustmeant of the financial asset's gross carmying value,

The Company has established a policy lo perform an assessment, at the end of each reparting period, of whether a financial instrument's
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of defaull occurmng over the remaining life
of the Iinancal instrument.

Based on the above procass, the Company categorises ils loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

+ Stage 1 - Perdorming assets (high quality assets) with zero o thirty days past due (OFD). Stage 1 loans also include facilities whare the
credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

= Stage 2 - Under-peforming assels (assels for which there is significant increase in credit risk) having 31 to 80 OPD. Stage 2 loans also
include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

+ Stage 3 - Non-performing assels {(cradit impaired assets) with overdue more than 90 DPD

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
af Ind AS 18 and loans under short term financing, the Company always measures the loss allowance al an amount equal to lifelime
expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifelime expecled credil loss allowance lor trade ecaivables, the Company has
used a practical expedient as permilled under Ind AS 109,

This expecied credil loss allowance is compuled based on a provision matrix which takes into account histerical eredit loss experience and
a=djusted for forward-locking information,

The impairment requirements for the recegnition and measurement of a loss allowance ars equally appiied fo debt instruments at FVTOGI
excapl that the loss allowance is recognised in oiher comprehensive income and is nol reduced from the carrying amount in the balance
shest,

The Financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire ouislanding amcunt, or &
proportion hereof, the gross camying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This |5 considered a (parlial) derecognition of the financial
assel.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when :
= The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or

= Relains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the lindncial assels, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
tey ane ar more recipients,

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company avaluales whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial assets. In such cases, the financial asssls is derscognised. Where the entify has not transferred substantially all fisks and
rewards of ownership of the financis! asset, the financial asset iz not derecognised.

VWrite-off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expactations of recovaring the financial assel (sither in ils
entirely or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company delermings thal the borrower does not have assets or soUrcas of income that]
could generate sufficient cash flows ta repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derectgnition event. The Company
may apply enforcerment activities lo financial assets written off. Recovenes resulling from the Company’s enforcement activitigs will result in
impairment gains.

2.15 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Delt and souity Instruments issued by a Company enfity are classilied as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity nstrument,

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or financial liabiliies
with arnother enfity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be setlled in the
Company's own equily instruments and is a non-derivalive contract for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number
of ils own aquily mstruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may be seltled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash {or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments

Al financeal habiilies are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest mathed or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabiliies that anse when a lransfer of a tinancial asset does ol qualify for derecognition or when he continuing
involvement approach applies, financlal guarantee contracts issued by the Company. and commitments (ssusd by the Company o provide a
Inan al balow-marke! mierest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting potigig{:u"_m'pm below
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liahilities are classified as at FUTPL when the financial liability is either cantingent consideration recognised by the Company as an
aceuirer in a business combination o which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or il is designated as at FYTPL.

A Ninancial llabllity s classified as held for trading if:

+ it has been incurmed principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; ar

= on initial recognition It is part of a portiolio of Identified financial inslruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of shorl-lerm profit-laking; or

+ b is 2 denivative that 15 not designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument.
Financial liabilities that are nol held-for-trading and are nol designated as sl FVTPL are measured al amortized cost.

Financial liabililies subsequantly measured at amortized cost

Finangcial liabiliies that are not held-for-trading and are not designaled as al FVTPL are measured atl amortized cost at the end of subsequent
accounting perods. The carrying amounts of financial fiabililies thal are subsequently measured at amartized cost are determined based on
the affective interest method. Interest expense that is nof capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the "Finance cosls' ine item.

The elfective interest method 5 a method of ealculaling the amortized cost of a financial llability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant penod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fuure cash payments (including 2!l fees and points paid
or receved that form an integral part of the effective inleresl rale, lransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expecled
lile of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorer period, lo the nel camyng amounl on initial recegnition

Deracognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and enly when, the Company's obligetions are discharged, cancelled or have expired,
An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal
financial liability and the recognition of & new financial liability Similarly. a substantial modification ef the terms of an existing finansial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficully of the deblor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of & new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profil or loss.

2.16 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term investments with an ariginal maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash squivalents consist of cash and shord term investments, as defined above.

217 Eamings Per Share
Basic eamings per share |s calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (before Other Comprehensive Income) for the vear attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares culstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profil or loss (before Other Comprehensive Income) for the year aliributable
1o equity sharsholders and the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity sharas.

3. Critical accounting judgements and Key sources of estimation uncertaintizs

The preparation of the financial statements in conformily with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilines) and the raported income and expenses during the
year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial staterments are prudent and reasonable.

Future results could differ due to these estimales and the differences belween the actual resulls and the esfimales are recogniged In he
periods in which the resulls are known / materalise.

Leases:

Ind AS 115 defines a lease term as the non-canceliable period for which the lessee has the right to use an underlying asset including optional
periods, when an entity is reasonably certain lo exercise an oplion lo extend (or not to lerminate) a lease. The Company considers all
relevant facts and circumsiances that ereale an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the optlon when determining the lease term,
The option to extend the lease term are included in the lease term, if it s reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option. The
Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumsiances ozcour that are within the control of the lessee.

Expected Credit Loss

When determining whether the risk of default an a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
considers reasonable and supporabls information thal is relevanl and avatable withoul undue cost or efiort. This includes bath quantitative
and qualitative infarmation and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and credil assessment and including forward-locking
mnformalion, In cerlain cases, the assessment based on pasl expenance is required for future aestimation of cash flows which requires
significant judgment.

The nputs used and process followed by the Company in determining the increase in cradit risk teve been detaled in Note 294

.
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

4. Cash And Cash Equivalents {Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021

Cash in hand 082 13.89
Balances with banks:

- In Current Accounts 10,019.07 6,833.53

- In Deposit accounts (refer note 4.1 below) §2 787.00 35,200.00

Cheques an hand - 28,76

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 241,70 561.97

Total 63,048.59 42,638.25

4.1 Short-term deposits are made for varying periods from seven days to one year, depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term fixed rates.

|5. Other bank balances (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021
Deposit accounts under lien against which facilities are avaiied (refer note
gl waiuc g ( 2,599 641 998.55
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 94 98 15.44
Total 2,694.58 1,013.99

5.1 Encumbrances on Fixed deposits held by the Company

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Fixed Deposits pledged for:
Availing credit enhancement towards securitisation transactions

CCE Banle 1,525.81 983,55
ICIC| Bank 1.072.70

Bank Overdrafts

Bank of Baroda 1.00 -
Bank Guarantee

AU Smazll Finance Bank - 5.00
Total 2,599.61 998.55

9.2 Deposits are made for varying period from 1 to 3 years and eamn interast at the respective fixed rates.




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

6. Investments

(Rs. in Lakh)

— As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021

Al fair value through statement of profit and loss
Mutual Fund (refer note 8.1 below) 5.502.06
Total (&) . 5,502.06
Treasury Bill
Treasury Bill (refer nole 6.1 & 6.2 below) 1,300.00 -
Less : Unamortisad Income -2B6.50
Total (B) 1,273.50 -
Grand Total (A+B) 1,273.50 5,502.08

MNote 6.1

MName of instrument

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 21, 2021

Na of units

Amount

No of units

Amount

Mutual Fund

DSF gvernight fund direct growth

ICICI prudential overnight fund direct plan growth
Invesco India ovemnight fund - direct plan growth
Mippon India overnight fund - direct growth plan
L&T overmnight fund direct plan - growth

HDFC overnight fund - direct plan - growth

5Bl overnight fund direct growth

2,26,820.10
8,01,647.85

96,174.94
9.05,776.43

2,500.10
1,000.86
1,000.65
1,000.65

Total (A)

21.30,419.31

5,502.06

Treasury Bill
364 DTE 20-10-2022 - 4.21%

182 OTB 22-09-2022 - 4.21%

1.00
1.00

28317
980.33

Total (B)

2.00

1,273.50

Mote 6.2

Investment in freasury bill 1s valued at amortised cos! as fair value of the invesiment is aporodmately same

——




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes to financial statement for the year anded March 31, 2022

7. Loans
(Rs. In Lakh)
As at March 31, | As atMarch 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Al amortised cost
Loans given in India to other than public sector
Tarm loans 4,79 001 87 2,935,022 48
Total — Gross (A) 4,74.001.87 290,022 48
Less: Impairment loss allowance (refar note 26) 740323 5037 A5
Total — Net (A) 4,71,596.64 2,93,084.63
{g) Secured by tangible sssers 1,64 95173 1,41,636.19
{b) Secured by accounts reseivables, fived depesits, LIC elc. 2805018 1461502
{ch Unaecured 29559994 1,52 866 37
Total — Gross (B) 4. 79.001.67 209022 48
Less: Impairment logs allowance TA03.23 5,837.85
Total = Met (B) 4,71,598.64 £,93,084.63

Refer note 39.4 (i)

7.1 The business mode| of the campany 15 fo hold the 2552t for genarating contractual cash flosws on accoun! of principal and Interest and hence Ihese are hald at
amaorised cost Sales, if any are insignificant and do not impact the business model,

The tabla below shows (the credit guatity and the exposure to oredit risk based an the year-snd stage slassiieation. The amounls presented are aross of impairment

alowances,
(Rs. In Lakh}
As at March 31, 2022
Cateqory Assets calegory Gross Expected Het PD
Carrying Credit Loss Carrying
Amount: Amount
S1n 2 0.03% o
ge 1 — High guality asasts Laan 4.52 B1a.27 1,7B2.76 4.51,031.%1 8.26%
Stage 2 - Assels including resiruciured assels for which there is 0.03% e
significant increase in credit risk Laoan 18,067.72 1,849:40 18,048.32 25 185,
Stage 3 - Credit impaired assets Laan G,189.88 3.671.07 2.518.81 100%
Tatal 4,79,001.86 7403.23 4,71,598.64
[Rs. in Lakh)
As at March 31, 2021
Category Assets category Gross Expected Net FD
Carrying Credil Loss Carrying
Amount Armount
’ C.03% to
Stage 1 — High quality assels Lesn 281 080,83 1,155.57 2,70,895.08 g.5%
vul B
Stage 2 - Assets for which ihere is significant increase in credit sk Loan 12.835.10 920,86 ez GETEP
Stage 3 - Cred|l impaired a31gs Loan 513675 386142 1,275.33 100%
Tovtal 299027 48 5937.85 2,93.084.63
i,
ZOTAL o




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

An analysis of ehanges in the gross camang amount 2nd the comrespanding ECL allowances in refation lo loans
{Rs. in Lakh)

Y 2021-22 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Gross carrying amount opening balance 2,81.050.63 12,625.10 513675 2,99,022.48
Transher dunng the year
Transfers lo Slage 1 1,461.56 {1,144.23) [377.33) -
Transfers to Slage 2 {4, 783.38) 8.836.31 (52.93) -
Transfers to Slage 3 {312.52) {1,465.73) 2,370.35 .
Blew cradit sxposues during the year, net of rapayments 16008273 1,035.00 (70506} 1,80,422.67
Armaunts written aff 194.75) (98.73) {249 50) (843.28)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 4,52,814.27 18,097.72 6,189.88 4,79.001.87
(Rs. In Lakh)
FY 2020-21 Siage 1 Stage 2 Slage 3 Tatal
Gross carrying amount opening balance 2,75823.53 2,B66.31 5,290,082 2,83,760.67
Transfer during the yaar
Transters to Stage 1 88.37 (55.83) {29.54) -
Transfers to Stage £ (12,626.20) 12,6268 20 . -
Transfers to Stage 3 {1.514.07) {1,580.32) 3,704 .40 .
Mew credil exposwe during the year, net of rapayments 18,278.00 (BOF 25) [3,228.935) 15,247.89
Amegunis writlen off - - - -
Gross carrylng amount closing balance 2.81,050.63 12,835.10 513675 2,50.022.48
(Rs. in Lakh)
FY 202122 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balances 1,155.57 920.86 386142 5,937.85
Transfar during the year
Transfers lo Stage 1 20851 (1102.37) (188 209 -
Transfars o Stage 2 [31.12) G251 (3139 -
Transfers to Slage 3 [3.23) (141.30) 144.53 -
New credit axposure during the year, net of repayments 36346 1,225.04 86.78 1,675.28
Amounts written off 10,43} {7.4101) [202.07) (204.90)
ECL allowance - closing balance 1,7TB2.76 1,949.40 367107 740323
{R%. in Lakh)
FY 2020-21 Stage 1 Sfage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balances 1,085.03 16541 2,d4563 3,706.07
Transfer during the year
Transfers o Stage 1 25.50 {4.29} (22.21) -
Translers o Stage 2 (47,47 4747 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 15.59) (11410 119,79 <
HNesw eredlt expasure during the year, net of repayments 8720 B2R.37 134821 2,231.78
Amaunts written off - - - -
ECL allowance - closing balance 1,155.57 920.686 3,861.42 5,937.85

7.2 The details of beans which afe grantsd o promoters, directars, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under the Comgenies Act, 2013), either severslly or joinfly
with any other person that are:

(a) repayable on demand or

(b} withowt specliving any @rms or period of repayment

Amaunt of laan or iy

advance in the the tntal Loama
Type of borrower and Advances in
nature of loan
the nature of
outstanding
loans
Promaoier " ¥
Director = *
HMPs - L
Related Partias - L
Total - =




AVANSE FINAMCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Maotes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

. T I
i [Rs. In Lakh)
at March 31, As a2t March 31,
Ptz 2022 3021
Trade Receivables: Unsecwad, Conssdarad Good 318.80 #5945
Trade Receivables- Unsecuwead, Which has significanl increase in . -
Lredil sk
Total 316.90 259.45
Impaiment Loss Allowancs 4771 =
het receivablos 268,19 259.45

a) Mo frade or ather recaivables are due from directors or ather officers of Ihe Company ither severally or jointly with any other persan.
Trade receidbles are son-inlerest beardng and e gensrally an terms of 20 1o 90 days,

bjTrads recelvabies daye past dus

As at March 31, 2072 Current :IL:E 91.180 days 181-270 days 2::'?:5" =360 days | Tatal
Eslimated totad gross E 26825 - 838 = 30,27 31500
camylng amoun| at
dofaull”

FCL - simplified - . - B.04 - 39.27 4771
Aapproach
Nat garrying - 268,25 - .84 & 5, 260,19

As at Mareh 31, 2021 Giwreny ;;3: A0 ey 181270 days 13:,1“ =360 days| Tetal
Eslimated lotal groas - 268,45 - % = i 36545
cATyIng ameunt 3t
dafaul”

ECL - shmplified - = i % : = z
appraach
Nat carrying - 2509.45 - - - - 250.45

M tradn or olher receivahle 5 due from dirciors or elher dificer of the Company gither saverally or joinly wilh ary other person. Mor any rade o
otfier recelvabie is due from fim or privat companies respestively in which any direefor |5 a partner o director or & member The Compary lollows
‘simplified approach’ for racagnition of impainment (oss allowance on lrade recelvables, The application of simafilod aporoash does not require the
Company to irack changes in aedil rigk. Rather, i moognises mpaimant Ioss allowancs based on liletime ECLs &l each reporing dale, nghl from

Its Initiad rercognition.
There are no recoivalilos Tor witich thare has boen a ¢ gaificant morease in credil nsk or which have become credit impaired,

Particulars Outstanding for following penods from due dale of payment
. & months- 1 Maore than
As al 31 March 2022 0- 6 Months gl 1-2 years 23 years % i Total
Uindies puste o Trade
Regeivables — comaiderad 268.25 0.84 - - - 269.19
gaod
Dispuled Trade
Recejvables - considered = - - - -
good
Undisputed Trade
Recaivebles — which have
significant  increase  in| . B o o
credil risgh
Disputed Trade
Recgivables — which have
significant  increase  in = o 2
credit risk
LUndisputed Trade
recetabla - cradit - ¥ . - 5 ”
{mpairad
Disputed Trade rpcaivable
— cradit impaired =
Total 288 25 0.8q - 2 = 268.13
Particulars Outstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
As al 31 March 2021 0~ & Months B mening 12 yoars 23 years Morethin) .. 0
year 3 years
Indisputed Tradw
Recelvablas — congidared) 2EUAS : - . - 25945
gond
Drigputed Trade|
Recsivables — considored| . - - - - -
good
Undispuled Trade
Racaivablas — winich have
significant  ingrease  in - )
oredil risk
Dispuled Trade
Receivables — which have
sigrificant  Inceease  in : =
credil risk
Undisgnted Tratde - E
receivable - orodil - % LD O o - = F
impatred Pr\o i b
Digputed Trade receivable : % \po)
= cresdit impaired et haids . hy =
Tatal 250,48 - '-;.!P“' i ('"_- & ! - 259.45 |




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

9. Others Financial Assets

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31,

2022 As at March 31, 2021
Security Deposits 339.44 339.04
Total 339.44 339.04

10. Deferred tax Assets (net)
(Rs. in Lakh)
. As at March 31,

Particulars 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Impairment of Financial instruments 1,551.65 1,289.12
Measurement of Financial instruments at amortised cost 196.03 -201.81
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 11.36 21.40
Difference between books and tax written down value of fixed assets 155,18 76.57
Total 1,914.22 1,195.28

(refer note 29.2 & 29.3)
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ondod March 31, 2022

12 Other Non-Financial Assets

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

Propaid Expansas I26.TE 330,50
Balances with Government Authorities s § | 7925
Compensated absences Fund 2047 66.46
Other Advances 913,42 34106
Tatal 1,494,946 1,107.27

Note ; Other advances mairly incdluda raceivatis from erstwhile DHFL against fixed deposil colalerals maitainsd by Company's
barrawers with DHFL {backed by bank guarariea).

13 TRADE PAYABLES

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars AR e
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024

Trade payables
- Total sulstandinyg dues of micr enterprises and small enterprises 3.7 B4
- Total Qumandlng dues of creditors Olher than micrn enferprses and small 3.378.85 1,745 74
enterprises
Tolal 3416.55 1,754.15

The amaunts duz to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in fhe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, has been determined
terihe extent such parties have been identfied on the basis of infarmation availabie with e Compary, This has been relied upon by the auditars.

Disclosure pertaining to Micro and Small Enterprises as at March 31,2022 are as under :

Pariculars As n[zh;:'zch 31, As at;;l;ch 31, i

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to amy supplier 55 at the end of the accounling 3770 a.d1
year I .
(i) Interest due Iherecn remalning unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accouniing year

{iit) The amount of interest paid slong with the smountz of the payment made 1o the
supplier beyond the appointed day

{1} Thee amount of interest due and paysble for the year = 4
tv) The @mount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting
year

[wi) The amaunt of furfher interest due and payable even in he succeeding year, unti!
such dats when the interes! dues as above are actually paid

Total A7.70 .41

Particulars Outstanding for fallowing periads from due date of payment

A= at 31 March 2022 -1 years 1-2 years Z-3 yaars More than 3 years Total

Tatal snstanding dues of micro enterprses and

srnall enferprises = ) - . 2RI
Total outstanding dues of creditors pther than|

micio entevprises and small enterprizes 128018 i, = ¥ T
Digputed dues of micro enterprises snd small . ) ) - .
enlerpnses

Disputed dues of creditors other (han micra ~ "

enterises and small enterprises )

Taotal 1,284.88 + - - 1.254.88
Particulars Quistanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2029 0-1 yoars 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total

Total outstanding dues of mico enlerprises and a4 % £ B4
small anerprises " . !
Total milslanding duos of creditors other than A
micre enlerprises and smiall entarprises L ) = = AsaiR
Dhspuled duss of micro enterprises and small ) ) .

BRtefmtises .
Disputed dues of craditors offer lhan microl . - :

enleprises and small epterprises

Tatal 430.57 = - 430.57

“Unbillad dues are of Rs 2,121 67 lakh 2s on March' 22 [As on March "21- s 1,323 58 lakh) "

(




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

14 DEET SECURITIES

{Rs. in Lakh)

. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
At Amortised Cost (Within India)
Secured
Nen Convertible Debentures (refer note 14.1 & 14.2) 1,08,556.38 85,057.16
Imterest accrued but not due on borrowings 4.494.62 4.629.47
Unsecured
Non Convertible Debentures - {refer note 14.2) 7.442.79 742973
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 252.23 252.23
Commercial Papers (refer note 14.2) 2,500.00 -
Less | Unexpired discount on Commercial Papers {21.49) -
Total 1,23,224.54 97,368.59

14.1 Non-convertible debentures aggregating Rs.1,09,000 lakh (P.Y. 2020-21 Rs.85,500 lakh) are secured by way of
first charge on freehold land (proportionately) and hypothecation on pool of certain loan fund balances of the Company.

14.2 Maturity profile and rate of interest/ discounted rate of interest of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD):

(Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Name of Security Maturity date 2022 2021

Mon convertible debentures
Private Placement - Face value of Rs.10,00,000 each
8.70% Non- Convertible Debentures (1 Year MCLR of State
Bank of india + 1.70%) s ) SRR
8.75% Non- Convertible Debentures 2021-22 - 15,000.00
8.65% Mon- Convertible Debentures 2022-23 1,000.00 1,000.00
11.40% MNon- Convertible Debentures 2022-23 19,500.00 18,500.00
11.40% Mon- Convertible Debentures 2022-23 10,500.00 10,500.00
10.05% MNon- Convertible Debentures 2022-23 500.00 500.00
%.50% Non- Convertible Debentures 2023-24 5,000.00 5.000.00
9.50% MNon- Convertible Debentures 2023-24 5,000.00 5,000.00
10.50% Non-Converlible Debentures (Unsecured) 2023-24 2,500.00 2.500.00
8.40% Non- Convertible Debentures 2023-24 10,000.00 -
8.40% MNon- Convertible Debentures 2023-24 10,000.00 -
8.40% MNon- Converlible Debentures 2023-24 3,500.00 -
8.40% Non- Convertible Debentures 2023-24 25,000.00 -
7.40% MNon- Convertible Debentures 2024-25 15,000.00 -
10.10% Non- Converlible Debentures 2025-26 2,500.00 2,500.00
10.10% Non- Converlible Debentures 2025-26 1,500.00 1,500.00
9.650% Nan-Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) 2027-28 2,500.00 2,500.00
9 35% Nen-Cenvertible Debentures (Unsecured) 2027-28 2,500.00 2,500.00
Total NCD (A) 1,16,500.00 93,000.00
Commercial paper
Private Placement - Face value of Rs.5,00,000 each
5.85% AU small finance bank 2022-23 2.500.00 -
Total commercial paper (B) 2,500.00 -
Total (C) = (A) + (B) 1,19,000.00 93,000.00
Add . Interest accrued & effective Interest rate adjustments 4,224.54 4,368.59
Total P = 1,23,224.54 97,368.59
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Motes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

15 BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES)

(Rs. in Lakh)

Pt g As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

At amortised cost {within India)
Secured
Term Loans fram Banks [refer note 161 & 15.2) 21087480 1,18,248.71
Term Loans fram other panies (rafer noke 15,1 & 15.2) 13.947.94 6,235.76
Cash Gredit from Banks (refer note 15.3) 2.000.00 1.588.08
Inleres! accrued bul noi due on bormowings 4286 94.02
Total (4} 2,26,865.60 1.26,566.57
At amortised cost (outside India)
Sacured
External commercial barowing 10,973.07 10,492.89
Interest acerued bul nol due on borrowings 32.29 20.36
Total (B} 11,005.30 10,522.25
Total (€] = (Al + [B) 2,37,870.90 1,37,088.82

15.1 Term loans from banks gnd other parties are secured agains! receivables,

Terms of repayrnent, nature of security & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

{Rs. in Lakh)
As at 31.03.2022

Up to one year 1-3 years 3 years & above
Rl Bale o Intivest (April 202210 | (April 2023 to (April 2025 Total

March 2023) March 2025) anwards)
B.07 % 10.8.00% 4,050,00 8.400,00 8,025.00 20.475.00
807 % o 2.00% JE.B41.9 B6,342.03 B4,420.23 1.89,404.17
9.0 % to 10.00% 7,948,895 2.408.54 8,161.89 28.520.18
10.01% to 11.00% 2,299 55 B00.00 - 2 RO1RR
Total 5293441 1,04,751.37 81,607.12 2,39,.792.90
Less: Interast Accrued & effective Interest rate Adjustments {1,422 00}
Total 2,37,870.30

{Rs. in Lakh)
As at 31.03.2041

Up to one year 1-3 years 3 vears & abave

s sl it {April 2021 to (April 2022 to (April 2024 Total
March 2022) March 2024) onwards)

6.01 ' to 8.00% - - - -
B.00 %, 10 9.00% 18,108 01 37,465,061 an,811.87 86,385, 70
8.01 % fo 10.00% 13,964.56 18,788.46 11,740.65 44,493,77
10019 tn 11.00% 448548 2,893,656 - 7,379.03
Total 36,558 15 59,147.92 A42,552.52 1.38,258,59
Lass: Intersst Agcrued & effective interest rate Adjustments (1,160,717}
Total 1,37 088,62

15.2 The rate of inierest for the above term loans (s linked lo the MCLR/base rales of the banks and is subject 1o change from tme to tme. The
above categorisation of loais has been based on the inleres| rales, prevalent gs on the respective reporting dates.

15.2 Cash credit facility from bank is secured against receivables and bank overdrall |5 secured soainst fixed deposit with bank.
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16. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Rs. in Lakh)
Paiticuling As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021

Employee Benefits Payable 803.09 79248
Advance received from customers 7.447.50 4,849.87

Book overdrafit 21,056.37 -
Lease liability 566.43 833.82
Amounts payable under securitisation arrangement 48,926.24 g 884.79
Total 78,989.63 16,360.96

17. PROVISIONS

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity (refer note 35) 74.62 43.66
Total 74.62 43.66
18. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2022 2021
Statutory dues 560.25 332.89
Total 560.25 332.89




AVAMSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. in Lakh)
As at March 31, | As at March
Particulars 2022 31 2021
AUTHORISED
100,000,000 Equity Shares of T 10 each 10,000.00 | 10,000.00
(FY 2020-21 10,00.00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each)
10,000.00 | 10,000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
82,591 861 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each §,259.19 0,259.19
(FY 2020-21 82,591,861 Equily Shares of ¥ 10 each)
8,259.19 8,259.19
18.1 {2) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
(Rs. in Lakh)
Pacti As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
articulars
Numbar Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 8,25,91,861 8,260,189 8,25.81.661 8,2568.19
Shares issued during the year pursuant (o preferntial alloiment - = - e
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 8,25,91,861 B,259.19 8,25,91,861 §,259.18

19.1 (b) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per shara. Each halder of equily shares is entitied to one
volte per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be-entitled to receive the remaining assets of tha
Company, afer distrioution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion (o the number of equity shares held by the

sharehaolders.

19.1 (c) List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 21, 2021
Number Ya Number k)

Olive Vine Investment Lid* G,60,73 488 BO.00%, 6,60,73 488 B0.00%|

International Finance Caorporation Lid 1,65,18,373 20.00% 1,66,18,373 20.00%

19.1. {d} Shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter Name Mo of Shares % of total shares

% Change during the year

Olive Vine Investmant Lid* 6.60,73,488 B0.00%,

As at March 31, 2021
Mo of Shares

Promoler Name % of total shares

% Change during the year

Qlive Vine Investment Ltd* §.60,73,488 80.00%

* Including shares held jointly with nominee Shareholdars
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20.0ther Equity

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2022 2021

Securilies Premium 75,923.27 7592327
General Reserve .14 0.14
Statutory Reserve {under Section 45-/C (1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934) 3,368 48 2.104.34
Stock Oplions Reserve B54.19 485.00
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 23.27 -80.68
Retained Eamings 12,537.90 7,469.07
TOTAL 92,707.23 85,901.14

Note: For additions and deductions under each of the above heads, refer Statement of Changes in Equity

Securities premium
Securiies premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares,

General reserve
The general resarve created from time (o time by transferring profits from retained earmings for appropriation purpose.

Statutory Reserve:
Statutory Reserve is the reserve crealed by lransferring a sum not less than twenty percent of the Company's net profit after tax every year
in terms of Section 45-IC of the RB| Act, 1934,

Stock Options Reserve:
Stock opliens reserve account relates to the stock options granted by the Company lo employees under an Employeas Stock Option
Scheme

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve:
It represents the cumulalive gain / (loss) arising on revalualion of the derivative Instruments designated as cash flow hedges through ather
camprehensive Income.

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings are the profits that the Gompany has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, statutory reserve, debanlure
redemption reserve, dividends or othar distributions paid to shareholders.




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

21.Interest Income
(Rs. in Lakh)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particylars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Interest on Loans 46,044.97 38,253.38
- Interest Income on fixed deposit 147014 298528
Total 47,515.11 41,238.66
22 Net gain on fair value changes
{Rs. in Lakh)
. For the year ended For the year ended
P
Ariicuings March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Realised gain on sale of mutual funds 394.10 449.73
Unrealised gain on mutual funds - 2.33
Interest Income from Treasury Bill 0.33 -
Total 384.43 452.06
23.Fees and Commission income
(Rs. in Lakh)
. For the year ended Faor the year ended
Particul
SFIRCINEE March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Forex commission 0944 .40 234 65
Insurance commission 654.25 189.66
Processing fees 67570 91312
Prepayment & other charges 544.60 77391
Total 2.918.95 211134
24.0ther Income
(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Miscellaneous income 2568 46.37
Lease liability writlen back - 40.70
Total 25.68 87.07




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
25.Finance costs
(Rs. in Lakh)
For the year ended Forthe year ended
Pl March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On financial liahilities measured at amortised cosl
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securilias) 15,238.30 1444339
Interegl on debt securities 10.288,.22 9,146.56
Finance cost on [eass liability BO.52 105.69
Financial liabifity towards securitisation 1,671.20 1,767 .69
Dther interest expense 101.46 145.84
Total 27,388.70 2560917
26.lmpairment of financi
{Rs. in Lakh)
For the year ended For the year ended
AT March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Provision for expecied credit loss 146638 223.78
Write Offs 442 79 139.64
Total 1,908.17 2,371.42
27.Employee benefits expense
{Rs. in Lakh)
For the year ended For the year ended
Parouirs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, Bonus and other allowances 6,138.03 5.516.73
Coniribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds (refer note 35) 2787 24296
Graluily {refer note 35) 94.98 88.14
Staff Welfare Expenses 13743 a5.90
Total 6,647.15 5933.73
28.0ther expenses
{R=. in Lakh)
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Elaclricity Charges 50.58 35.56
Security Charges B.1T 840
Manpowsr Culsoursing 468.23 555.56
Rent 113.98 18.28
Office Maintenance 51.87 2831
Insurance Charges 130.87 85.78
Rales and Taxes 41.60 27.02
Heousekeaping Expenses 81.29 75.22
Business Sourcing Expenses B45.69 263.37
Traveliing and Conveyance 506,60 25817
Rating Fees 146.60 12728
Printing and Statlonery 57.24 62.77
Postags, Telaphone and Fax 178.90 144.74
Advertising 345,85 161.76
Bank Charges 29.62 16.92
Dirgctor's Remungration & Siting Feaes 78.04 52 .68
Lagal & Professional Expenses 1,294.42 1,438.40
Avditors' Remuneration (refer note below) 66.49 32,98
Carporate Social Responsibilly expenses (refar nole 34) B1.13 50,00
Miscallaneous Expenses 48776 271 .61
Total 5,076.42 3,735.35
Payments to auditors (including Goods and Services Tax to the extent of credit not availed)
{Rs. in Lakh)
Barbotilas For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Marech 31, 2021
a) For audit and limited reviews 58.53 2533
bx) For taxation matiers - -
¢} For other services 783 3.43
o) For rembursement of expenses 0.33 0.22
Total 66.49 32.98
. /i
Ty
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29 Reconciliation of total tax charge
{Rs. in Lakh)
294 Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended
' Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2024
Current tax 2598445 1,68295
Deferred tax (T58.05) (A48.46)
Total income tax expenses recognised in the current 2,225.40 1,234 .49
year
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive 3512 [(9.92)
Income
Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the
accounting profit:
Profit betore tax B,545.98 4, 854,77
Ineome tax rate 2517% 2517%
Income tax expense 2,150.85 1.221.85
Tax effect of;
Impact on account of change in tax rate - -
Others 74.585 12 64
Income tax expense recognised in Profit and Loss 2,225.40 1,234.49
The fallewing lalsle shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax Bnpense:
Faor the year ended March 31, 2022 {Rs._in Lakh)
29.2 | Deferred tax asset [ (liability) Opening balances as | Recoanised in profit | Recognised in Closing
on 01.04.2021 or loss ([Expensa)/ other balances as on
Income comprehensive 31.03.2022
Income
Impairment of Financial instruments 1,868.12 252.53 . 1,561 65
Measurement of Finandial inslruments at amertised cosl (201.81) 432.80 {34.98) 196.03
?ésﬂilluwa nces under secion 438 of the Incoms Tax Acl, .40 (5.88) (4.16) 11.36
Differgnce between books and lax written down valug of 76.57 7861 - 185 18
hxed assats
Total 1,195.28 758.06 (39.12) 1,914.22
For the year ended March 31, 2021 (Rs. in Lakh}
28.3 |Deferred tax asset/ [liability) Opeaning balahces as | Recognised in profit | Recognised in Closing
on 01.04,2020 or loss (Expense) f other balances as on
Income comprehensive 31.03.2041
income
Impairment of Financial instruments 80271 42641 - 1.2089.12
Measurement of Financial instruments at amortized cost (202.79) (26.15) 27.13 (201.81)
I?;;a:lawannes under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 130.65 (92.04) (17.21) 2140
Diffarence between books and tax wrillen down value of
T — 832 70.25 - 1647
Total 736.89 448 47 9.92 1.195.28
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33

The aggregate depreciation expenses on HOU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expanses in the Statement of Prafil and
Tatle showmg contraclaal matunities of lease Rabilifies as 3l March 31, 2022 on an undiscourted basis.

Lease Liabilitigs and Lease Cash Flows {Rs. In Lakh)
; As Az at
ol March 31,2022 | March 31, 2031
Less than one vear - contraclual undiscounted cash Bows. 262 41 2Ta7
Qe fa five years 304,02 H53.85
More than five years .
Total 566.43 E33.B2
Amount Recognised in Statement of Prafit and Loss {Rx. Ini Lakh)
Particulars ot A at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest nn lease llabililes chasged 1o finance cos| go52 105.69
Depreciation chargs for the patied on Rol assols 205,78 14763
Total 375.30 453,32

Cash nul Mo on sccount of [ease payYments s Re 267,98 lakhs [prmriws yaar Rs 215,07 lakhs)

The Cempany does nof face slenificant iquidity sk with regards to il leage labililies 25 1he current aspels ars sufficlznt to mest the obllgations related to lsass labilitias as and when they

fait dua,

Segment Reporting
The Compsy operaies in a single eporiable operaling segment of provicing loans. Aoenedingly thare are no separate repariahla seqmients,
Segmenis’ {ind AS 108] prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Agl, 2013

The Campany bas s eperation within lndia and all revenues are generated within India

{Rs. in Lakh)
Sr, N As ar As ot
No. Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
30 |Contingent Liabifities And Commitments
Coptingent Liabilities = o
Capital Commitments:
Urndisbursad commebmenls 408 BES5.90 20,447 .73
Estimated amount of conlracts remaining to be executed en capital acccunt and nof provided for 120.52 -
" . Farthe Year Ended | For the Yaar Ended
=% |FamungiPicEqully S March 31, 2022 Mirch 31, 2021
Profit aflnbutable fo aquily sharm hoiders (Rs. in lakh) 6320.58 3,709,864
Weighied average number of equity shares outstanding dunng the year for calowlating basic and diluted sarnings per share (Mos.| 8,25,91,861 BIB A5
Basic and dilulsd samings
nee share (R5. ) 765 4.59
Mominai value per share (Fs.) 1000 10.00
Mol Thirs is no dilution in thi EPS on accowl of empleyas stoch oplions iesued during the year since ths exertise prion is aqual to he
fair value per shars
32 Leasing
In dccordance wilh (he Ind AS 116 on "Leases”, the lallowing disciosures in respect of operating leases am mado.
The Gampany kas acquired 15 afflcs premisas on operating lease hasis for perieds ranging from 1 year 1o 9 years
The Company hias recegnised lease labilities and right 1o use assets as follows:
| B at As at
il Sl Mareh 31, 2022 | Mareh 31, 2021
I Lease Liabllitles
Cpmming Balance 83382 1048 59
Add: Lease liabiliies recogniged as on 01 Apnl 2021 on application of Ind AS 116 - -
Add: Lease liabililies racugnisadch.ring the yoar 143,10
Less: Loase |iabiities written off during the year - 54,13
Add: Interest accrued on lease labilities Ba.E2 105.68
Less Lease paymants A56.81 40083
Closimg Balance of Lease Liabilities 666,43 835,82
I Right of use assets (RoU assets)
Opening balance TRLSE 83152
Add' Roll assels recognised as-on I Apil 2019 on application of lnd AS 116 - -
Add: Roll asssls recognised during the year 14310
Less: Roll assets written aff during tha year s 1343
Less: Depreciation gn Rol) assets 285.TB 763
Closing balznee of Rol) assets 48T, 7H 773,56
Loss,

atpep the Accounting Standard on "Operaling
. . '-\.._\




33 (A} Change in liabilities srising from financing activitios

(s in Lakh)
. B al April 01, | Gash Flows | Others MAs at March 31,
i 2021 {blat) (net)’ 2022
Dbt securifies Sro66.08) 2163141 437135 1.23,223.25
Barrowing ather than dats Y .
Sheataine: 1,37,088.82| 10252397 | {1.689.99) 247.918.80
Prrtirilars As at April 01, | CashFlaws | Others | As at March 31,
2020 {Net) (nat)* 201
Dabl secunifis T4 91563]  18,08327 | 436859 37.368 55
Botrewars; b iandiht 1,71,946.60) [33,770.60)| (4,087.27) 1,37,088.82
seECUrties s | EEr R2EEH htatak

* Othar column ineude he elfect of accrued it not paid interest on barrowing, amortisation of

processing lees elc

33 1B} Transfer of financial assets

The tatile below oullines the carmying smounts and fair values of all financial assels translened that are not desecognsad in thek enfitely and associated labiies.

As al March 31, As at March 31
ces measured af amordised cost J 4
Loans and advan 1 co e ot
Carrying amount of transtered dssels measured st amont ised coal. ERANE 22 11,619.46
Carrying amount of associated liabillies measured al amoriised cosl [48.858.51) (7.833.37)

34

Expenditure tawards Comporate Social Responsibility 2s per Section 135 of the Companios Act, 2013 {read with schedule VIl thereof)
a  Gross amaunt required 1o Be spent by the Company & approved by the board during the year — Ra. 81,13 lakh (Previous Year, Rs 60,00 [akh)

b Detajis related to spent { unspent obligations: [R5 in Lakh)
2 As at March 31, | A= a1 Mareh 39,
Particulars 2023 a3
I} Contribution fo Public: Trust - -
i) Contribution by Charitzble Trust Fa.T78 0.0
Iii) Urepent amoun) in rolation o;
- Ongaing project : *
Qiher than angoing praseet A.ar -
©  Incase of 5. 135(5) (Dther than ongoing project) [R= in Lakh)
Amount
deposited in
- G Amount requiredte be | Amount spant
Opening Balance Specified Fund of : Glosing Balance
Sch. VIl within § spent during the year | during the year
maonths
81.13 7276 BT
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35 Employee Benefit:

Defined contribution plan
Tne Company aperates defined conributian plan (Provident fund) for all qualifying employees of the Gompany. The employees of the Company

are members of a ralrement confribution plan eperated by the government. The Gompany is required o contribute & specified percentage aff
payroll cost o the retirement confribuion scheme 1o fund tha bensfits, The only obligation of the Compary with respect o tha plan is to make he

spacified confributions,

The Company's contribufion to Provident Fund agoregating Rs.264.87 lekh (Previous Year: Rs.232.67 lakh) has besn recognised in the
Statemeant of Profit and Loss under the head Employees benefit expenzes.

Defined henefit abligation plan
The lability under the Payment of Graluity Act, 1872 are delermined on the basis of actuarial valuation made al the end of each financkal year
using the projecled urel credit method.

The pian iz of a final satary defined benefit in natura which is sponsored by the Company and hence it undanwritzs all the rizks periaining o the
plan. The actuarial risks associated are;

Investment / Interest Rate Risk:
The Company |5 exposed to Investment / Interest risk (T 1ha return on the invested fund fEls below the dizcount mate used 1o arfve at present
value of the banefil,

Longevity Risks:
The Company is not exposed lo risk ol the employees living longer as the benafil under the scheme ceases on the employee separting from the
employer for any reason.

Salary Rishs:
The gratuity bansfits under the plan are related to the employes's last drawn salary. Consagquantly, any unusual nse i fulurg salary of the
employee raises the guantum of benefit payable by the company, which resulis in a higher lbility for tha company and is therefore a plan risk for
the company.

d) The assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.,

As at March 31, | As at March 3,

Particulars 2022 2021
Significant assumptions

Discount rate 5.15% 4. 95%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% S.00%,

Other assumption
Indian Assured | Indian Assured
Mortality rate Lives (2012-14) | Lives (2012-14)
Litirmate Ultimate

b} Ameount recegnised in Balance sheet n respect of these defined benefit obligation

{Rs. in Lakh)
Az at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
FPrasant value of defined benafil oblgation 21B.64 178.84
Fair value of plan assels 144.07 13518
Met liahility 74.62 43,66
c) Amount recognised in statomont of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit obligation:
(Rs. in Lakh)
For The Year | For The Year
Particulars Ended March | Ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Current service cosl 9517 B8.70
Netinlerast cost {0.95) {0.56)
Pasl sarvice cosl = »
Total amount recognised in siatement of profit and loss 34.98 A8 14
Femeaasuremeanis on the nat defined benefit liability -
- Actuanial (gain) / loss (165} (68.40)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (16,52} |68.40)
Total T8.46 19.74

The curent service cost and the nal iteres! sxpense for the year are included in the 'Employes benefit expenss’ lne itbem in the statement of
prodit and loss. .
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d) Moverment in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
(Rs, in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 21, | As at March 31,
2022 204

Opening defined benefit obligation 178.84 161.32
Current service cost ag7 BE.YO
FPazl sarvice cost - -
Interest cost £.23 871
Remeasuremants (gains)/lasses:

= Acluarial gain from change in demoaraphic assumptions {268} [13.04)
- Acluarial lass from change In financzl assumptions £.68 [13.53)
- Actuarial gain from change in experience adiusimants [16.06) [48.30)
Benafils paid (47.40) {2.02)
G!osing defined benefit obligation MB.TE 176.84

&) Significant acluarial assumptions for the detormination of the defined benefit obligation are discounl rete and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis bedow have been delermined based on reasonable possible changes of the assumplions occurring at tha end of the reporting
perlad, white holding all other assumplions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis are 2s follows |

{Rs. in Lakh)
31st March 2022 315t March 2021
Discount Salary y Salary

SR rate | Escalation Rate | D1SP0UNtTRIC | iation Rate
Defined bensfit obligation on increase in 100 bps 211.62 22463 172.03 18452
Impact of Increase in 100 bps on DBO -3.23% 2.72% A.81% 3%
Defined benelil obligation on decrease in 100 bps 226,25 213.00 186.17 17347
Impaci of dacreass in 100 bps on DEQ 3.46% =2.60% 4.10% -3.17%

The sansilivity anslyzis prasentod abave may not be representative of the actual change in the defined beneflil abligation as it is ualikely 1nal Ihe
change in assumplicns wauld oceur in fsolation of one anolher as some of the assumptionz miay be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valualion for the prior periads in preparing the sensitivily analysis. For change In assumptions refar 1o nete
@) above.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysie, the present valle of the defined banefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit methad at the end of the reporling period, which s the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligalion aszet
racognised in the balante shegt

f} Projected benefits payable: {Rs. in Lakh)
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars ap22 2024
Expacted benshils for year 1 40,94 2342
Espesled benefits for year 2 47.85 3o
Expected benefits for year 3 38.69 34.02
Expectad benefits for year 4 32.52 Z0.62
Expected benafils for year § 26.81 23.80
Expectad benefits for year 6 to 10 80,60 59 00

The weighted average duration to 1iie paymanl of these cash flows is 2,30 years (FY2019-20 : 2.50 yEars)

The Code on Social Ssourily, 2020 (Uode’) relaling le employee benefits during employrment and post-amployment bensfits recelved Presidential
assent in September 2020, The Code has been published (n the Gazette of India, However, the date on which tha Gode will come into effect has
not Been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the periad the
Code becomes sffective,

Tha Cempany expaels 1o contribute approximately Rs 43.66 lakh (previous year 14,62 lakh) ta the gratwily fund

g} Investment pattern:

Particulars FY 2029-22 FY 2020-21
Gavemment securilies 0% 0%
High qualily corporaie bends 0% 0%
Equity shares of listed companies 0%, %
Property 0% 0
Spacial deposit scheme 0% 0%
Palicy of insuranca™ 1005, 100%
Bank balance 0% D%
Other investmants L) 0%
Total 100 100%
“Components of invastment by the insurance company ae:

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Giovernment secuiilies 1% 1009
Corporate bonds - 0% 08
Al 0% 0%
ABE 0% [
AR, ; 0% n%
Cash, daposils, MM 0% L
Tatal £ 100% 100%:




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Motes to financial statement for the yoar ended March 31, 2022

36 Related Party Disclosure:
As par Ind AS 24 — "Ralated Parly Disclosures”, Tollowing disclosure are made:

Names of related parties and description of Relationship

(i} Holding Company
Olive Vine Investment Lid (From July 30, 2049)

(An sffiliate of Warburg Pincus LLC)

{iiy Directors
Mr. Neeraj Swaroap - Independent direcior (appointed w.e.f. July 30, 2018)
Mrs. Vijayaiakshmi lyer - Independent director (appointed w.e L. July 30, 2019)
Mr. Narendra Ostawal - Non executive director [zppointed w.e.t. July 30, 2019)
Mrs. Savita Mahajan - Independent director (sppointed w.e f, December 01, 2018)
Mr. Ravi Venkatraman- Independant director (appointed woe k. July §, 2024)
Mr. Amit Gainda- Managing Director {appointed w.e.f. March 2, 2022)

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Amit Gainda - Chief Executive Gfficer

Mr. Rahul Bhapkar - Chief Financia| Officer (resigned w.e.f. June 01, 2021}

Mr. Vineel Mahajan - Chief Financial Officer (appoinled w.e.f. September 22, 2021)
Mr. Rakesh Dhanika - Company Secretary (resigned woe.f. August 06, 2021)

Mr, Vikas Tarekar - Company Secretary’ {appointed w.e.f. September 02, 2021)

{v) Defails of transactions with related parties

(Rs. in Lakh)
Name of the related party March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Remunaration 48476 472.683
Director's Commission
Neeraj Saroop 21.80 21.80
Vijayalakshmi hyer 10.80 10.60
Savila Mahajan 10.80 10.50
Favi Venkalraman B1Y -
Sitting Fees
MNeera] Saroop 6.65 706
Vilavalakshmi lyer 7.52 7.08
Savita Mahajan 545 4.03
Ravi Venkatraman .65 -

(Rs. in Lakh)
Balances as at March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Directar's Commission
Meeraj Saroop 271.80 21.80
Wijayalakshmi fyer 10,80 10.80
Savita Mahajan 1090 10.80
Ravi Venkatraman BT -

36.1 There are no provision for doublful debis advances or amounts written off or written back for dabits due fromd due lo related parties.
36.2 The ransactions disclosed abowe ara inclusive of 9% G3T.
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Vasting pariod of the opfions |ssued under the ESOP Schema (5 on a stralght ine basis over the period of 4 years with the vesting condilion of continucus

AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

38 The Board of Directors at its meeting held an January 28th, 2020, approved an issue of slock oplions of 48,28 788 oquity shareg of the face velue of Rs. 10 each in a
manner provided in the SEBI (Employse Stock Option Schame and Employes Sfock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1839 sublect 1o the approval of the shareholders)
under Jection 52 of the Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders of the Company vide their special resolution passed at it 18th extra ordinary gersral meeting held
on Februzry 5, 2020 approved the issue of equily shares of the Company under Avnase Financlal Senices Emplover Stock Option Plan - 2013 (ESOP -2015),

employemant with the Company or the Group except in case of death and retiremant wharé the vesting would happen immediately.

The Nominalion and Remuneration Comminise of the Company has approved the following grants to select senior level executives of the Company in accordanca)
with the Slock Option Scheme. Under the scheme, five grants have been made as of 31 March 2022, details of which, duly adjusted for sub-tivislan of shares and

issue of bonus shares therson, are given as under.

As on March 31, 2022

Method used for aceounting for share based paymeant plan

The Company has used the fair value method to sccount for lhe compensation ces! of steck options to employees, The falr value of aptions used are estimated on
the date of grant Using the Black = Scholes Modei. The key assumplions used in Black — Scholes Model for calculating Fair value as on tha date of rmespectiva grants

Granl Date 5-Feb-20 5-Feb-21 1-Jun-21 1-Oct-21 B-Feb-22
Exercise Price 152 183 183 230 230
Diption Granted 2427772 4,64, 741 72623 2 b4 e85 41 163
Option vested and exercisable 745,208 81.533 = = .
Oiption vnvested 2249 755 3,17.456 72623 2,499 665 41,1683
Option exercisad - - - - -
Cplion cancelled 4,42 809 65,752 - - -
Option Oulstanding 29,04 983 3,508,080 72,623 2,959,665 41 183
Weighted average remaining
confractual life (years) 1.51 1.58 1.67 2.37 2.36
As on March 31, 2021
Grant Date 5-Fob-20 5-Feb-21
Exercise Price 152 153
Oplion Granled 3427.772 254 741
Dption vested and exercisable 426,395 -
Opition unvested 27,719,282 4,64 741
Option exercised - B
Option eancelled 222085 -
Option Cutstanding 3205687 4.64,741
Welghted avarage remaining
contractual lile [vears) 2.33 251
WWeighted avarage fair value of stock options granted duning he vear is as follows:
Particulars FY 2022 FY 2021

1=dun-21 ¢ 4-Oct-21 B-Fab-21
Grant Date 8-Feb-22
Mo of Dption Granted 4,13.451 464,741
Weighted average fair value Hs. Gh.66 55.63

are:
Grant Date 5-Feb-20 5-Feb-21 1-Jun-21 1-Oct-21 B-Fab-22

Risk Free Inlerest Rale (%) 6.1 5.48 5.55 547 547
Expected life 4 ysars 4 Years 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expecled volalility 17.97 24.53 25 24,03 2403
| Dividend yield - - = " ‘
Fair market valuz at the time of 152 193 143 230 230
aption grant (Rs.)

The: Charge on account of aboye schiame is included in smployes benelil sxpense sggregating Re. 369,20 Lakh (previous yesr Ra 406.00 Lakh)
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3% | Financial Instrumenis

1 | Canital Management

The Company aansges ks capisl b srsare that the Company w3l ba abls 10 conboue a5 gomg contsm whilke maxmizing Ihe mlum e sieko holdess though he optlirizasan of e debl aad
squdy balanca.

Fof the pwpose of tha Company's capes! manegamen!, caraal insudes ssued angitol and ethet oquity resenss. The prmary obiestive of the Company's Cepital Mansgemzat is 14 maximize
s holdes value snd minemise cosl of capial, Tha Company manegas e captnd structure and makes sdivoimanis in the Ighl of changes it scansires enviranmond ond the mquiame nts of
L fireamecil covsnants.

I erder to achieve. this ovorall objactive. the Company's capial Managoman, BmMongst ather thgs, ains to ahdune that 0 mesls nsnssl sovenants attacned o the intarsst heanng koans and
bomowings that defing capial siuciure requiemerns, Braaches in manéal covenants wiuke permt INe Iender o Mmradiotesy call Inans ang borowings.

The Coemfany & sufipecl o capiel adequacy ralio ("CART) equiraments wheh s prescnbed by tha KBl The Campany s cumenlly reguiesd by rmaintain a mnimoem 159 as presonbad uncer
ina prudentinl norms of e HAD under tha- Master Dirsction — Man-Banking Financial Company = Spatcmicatly impariant bon epoat taking Cempang fnd Dposil laking Comgarny [Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2018 baced an the ioial eagital 1o rek waightad sseeis a8 par of the govemancs policy. We gonaraly mairinin capgnl adaquacy higher fran the siacudonly prascribed CaR.
The caplial sceuacy mbo, which was complded on the basis of the applicable RBI requinemants, is as below, Wa balieve that sur high copital sraquescy ghvas Ue signilicant headmsm by gres
o BUsiness

Capital Risk Adequacy Aatie [CRARL

Paniculars As 01Mareh 37, | s at Mareh 31,
2022 2021

Capital Funds

Mgk pwned duns [ Tiee | Capsal] 96,054.74 040414

Thar # Capial 5,083,485 6,656, 78

Total capital funds 1,02.038.18 87 0&Z .91

Tolal risk welghtod assels | cuposures 4 44 4B5.52 2.P6,522.70

% of capital funds (o risk waighled assets | exposuries

Ther I eanial 2161% 3040%

Tier Il eapdal 1.35% 2.08%

Torsl capital funds 23.567% A2 74%

39,2 |Fair Vahio

Thig section explans ine judgemente ard eclimales made in determining 1ne fair valses ot 1he fmancis instrsmonts that are (@) reoognied ond measiined a1 ir vakie and (k) messured o8
amoddisad cosl and for which fair walues am dedosed in the Bnanciil iMemuents, To provido an indeagon abow she maliabilty of the inpuss used 10 detammining tar walue, 1he Campany has
clamsfiemd s fnancal instnments inlo e thres kevals prescribed under the acccunling standard. A esplanation of each lawal folows undemes ih fie table,

Set gl bebaiwe 5 5 comparsan by class of the carrying amounts and fsr value of the Company's finandal insinimenis. ather than these wilh carmying amounis that ane reason stk
appraximalions of fair wlues
Accounting classifioations and f2ir values

(s In Laih}
Carrying Valie Fair Value
A 3 Mareh 31, 2022 F¥TPL FVTOC Amortised Cosd Tadal Laowel 1 Lewsl 2 Level 3 Yol |
Finanelal nzgets:
Drorivative hnancial netrumeants 345089 - 50,95 - 25089 - 358,99
Cash ane oash amaElants - . [EReN L E3,048.50 . F - a
Caenar bank balorisos - - 2abd 5 2 B34 EG . B - =
Loang - - 4,71 50E B 471 50064 - B - =
Inveshirents 1,273 50 - 1,27350 s 127360 - 127350
Trady Receivubiuy 260 1% 2RO - - = =
Ontier financial sssels - - 2444 33044 - - - -
Total 127380 350.09 5,37,050.45 53057805 - 1,624.40 - 162449
F
Drureative Brancial nsinerans - - - - - - -
Trade payables a - 1476 55 3,416.88 - - -
Dabt secuilies - = 1 A3A0 8 1.23,324 54 - - -
Bioriowinigs [oiter than debt securkties) . . AR A0 23T aT05E0 3 = £ i
Qittigr financial skl s - . FAO00 65 TH9E0.53 - - - .
Taal 2 : 0860161 443,501 61 . 5 ‘
Carrying Vniug Fair Value

An at Mareh 31, 2021 FUTPL Amoriised Gost Tatal Level1 | Lowel # Lewet 3 Toi=l
Flnanclal assgis
Cash and sash wijuivalsnks - - A2 ENE2S 47 63625 . . -
Oitier brark balances - - 1475885 1,013,529 = . - -
Loans - = PR REL T 2.85,084.03 * . - 2
Inasimonis 6.502.06 - - 5, 500,06 = 560208 - 5.502.0G
Trade Recenatlys 15645 25545 3 B . -
bt firaniaad assals — - - 136.04 335,04 = £ . .
Total 5.502.06 - 3,37,335.37 3,41,837.42 - 5.502,08 . 607,06
Financial lisbiitivs ]
Daeivalive linancial latrimenis - EEE ] 180.31 19831 - 1901
Trade payables - - 175415 1.754.15 = - . -
Droist securities - - &7, 36850 S97.368,59 - * - .
Bormuwiiugs {oEhar than dety securtiug) - - 13706882 .37 pHE.82 - - = -
Cimer Cancial lasiies - . ¥, J40 S 16, 36094 5 - = -
Tatal = 18031 L.82.572.52 £,58. Th2 83 J 19031 - 19034
Moies

A Ak ns given ciher than digitel ane at foating interes! rate s, aMoMised COSES eouals ther (2i valug

b} e rvative linancis irsirmans age threagh FYTOLTon account of hedge posoonting

c}f investmenks in muiual funds are valued A8 fair wakoe usng Be NAVs quoted by She mxpechve Fund houses on therepossng date
e nvatve s are s valved using bservable tareign exchange mies and inferes tatss

Fawr vakin hararchy (contiound)

Lavel 1. Level 1 hisraschy mcluds financhal instramants maasared using guoked pices Tols nckades uils of mutval fursis fepen ended)

Lawed 30 The tair yalus of fmansal Relrurvings thet s nat traded inoan acies maetel f0ext mgde, dedralive nstrurmenl s 3 delanmine d using valuabion lechniques which

ma s [ usa of oheanvalia markat dnia and raly ot litie 85 posaible on enbty specifio estimades 2 Lagnileaat npibs requirad o fair value g insloumean am obss iable,
Lewed 3 4F ana ar morg of the Signilicant InpOts |2 nat baced on shserabis markal eata, 1ha incfrumant isoduded n lseel 3

Thize has bean an eranciors batwann loual 1, vl 2 e aeal 3 60 ihe yanr sngas 31 faesh 2003 and 31 March 2021
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385

394

Falr vakie me asuramant

Fabe vihaeg of Brancial ihanements nel massursd a1 far value:

The table bedoe is 3 comparlsan, by dass, of the garmying amouns and feir vaiuos of e Camponys fnancal instrimants (hat ata net camed a1 fair valus in 1he inancial statérents, Carrying
amgunls of cash and caeh equivalenis, ade recaivalies, Fvostmants, loons gnd wade and oiner poyalioe oa on Biaren 31, 2022 approwmals the 10ie valso barause of ther shartlerm netive
Diffesence. botwean canying amound and far walues of bank degosiis, other financials acsois, siher fmancisl Gabdiies 3nd borowings CUCSOqUERy Messuwwsd 1 amadised cost & ot
signilicant m eaeh of The years presented

A5 il March 37, 2023 Carrying valuo Faif valus Total
Ll 1 Lavwnl 2 Loval X
Financlalg Azcats
Loans 471 53 B - . A F2AITAR a7 89748
Flisanciike Liabitks
Dl gacurilas 1,23.224 54 - . 1.49.556 D1 11959608
Bormwais [omer (fan Ceb Securiies) 2,37.870.80 - - 236,914 34 236,914.7%
As at March 3§, 2021 (Earrging waluo Fair value Total
Luwol 1 Level 2 ! 3
Financials Assets
LLdastys 2.493,084.63 . - 284, 105.95 2,94, 105,85
Financials Liabifites
Dt sptainleas o7.288.54 - - a5 403,26 05,405 36
Bortieangs (other than debt sacinbes) 147 08.82 . - 155,155,056 134 155 46

Maleation methodetogies of financial Instrumants nat messured o fair vakle

Balow aw (he mathodologies ant assumplone used lo delsiine fair values for she phova financsal nstumants wiich are nal resoedag g mesaurss al foicvalos o the Company's fmanesl
stafements These for vahies weie caloubsted for disdosure porpeses only. The befew meinodologes crd assumptions st aaly to tha inssuments it 1ne a0evs 00k0 A48, 89 26, may
dilier from the fechnmues aad assempbons edolained in nojes.

Fimancial assels at amortised cosi

Ty dir values Bnancul assety measured 3 amonised cost s estimatgd uging o digcoutied cast Biw mogol based on conlractual cash fows using astual or estimeted yiskds and
ehseauniing by yiedds incomgsaratng e eouniemparies’ credd risk

Izcued drbt

The fwir vk of B308d dob? 12 eslimated by o discountzd cash flaw moded

Off balances ahest

Calmeled {s vabia of off balance shesl pasifions in fann af undiewn commitment ame eclimmed using 3 dsenuniod cosn fivse modal Basen an contmeal commitsd caab flaws, using actal
or eslimated yelts amd Bacounting by wel s incorporaling the counlemparties' credt risk

Financial rish manzgamant

The Lompany has expasars toothe following nsks arsing len lingncal inslsuments:
= Gredil nsk

= Cpariona) fek;

= Liquikty rish © ana

= Market st (inliting st ribe fsh)

« Ferey ek

Risk management framewark

Rizk manggemant 1oms an imegrel gan af the Compang's Business. As & lending mslilulon, the Company s esposed 1o several rsks melated & the leading Dusmads and opecating
nvionment. The Company nas esGbienad ngk mear il it Ir s tn icently, assess, mondor aid menage vanous Dpes of inlemal and. exlermal dsks. This framework &

driven Ly 1bay Board Iiowdf ihe Audil Commities, Rk Managamant Comtmitas and the Asssl Liabédy Managemen! Commdas Rk Managemen] Comerlee inter slin is responsitls for
review Identrlication, manitoring and previding ovarsighi on mansgemant of nsk of tha Company.

Credil risk
Cradit rak i the nsk of a3 thet may oot from the Bilue of any party be abide by the fems and wenditions of any consmcs, poscimlly the flune to make requines payments of amounts due
T the Cornpany. In ils enging cperafizns, he Company i3 pansipally expased (o crsdil nsk
The coedit sk manegemant sineciure includes seperabs cadd policies and procoduces for vatous businessss. The ceill poliches culine the tType of products thatcan bie offered. cosomer
calaganes. Me tangpaled fuatpmer profis, prudential limds, ekeeplional spproved mebics oo, and dhe oadil aporoval procsss and bmits, Sradit asprovers and relationshig manages Ao
|raspoasihla for pnsgnng aanoranca o Moee nobicias

The Company hos ainuiiued and siandandlied sedil cpprovil pracesses whch mohude comprefensie credl sk assessment encompassing analyss of rmleant quendiztive ang qualiatve
ifanmation (= ascertn thu wredit werdhingss of L Berower, The aedl apprasal proesss indudes wensification of urdamng sisks, miigaling faclors and ssidual isks assoomed win he
suslarer,

Sanctumng Guthety fr crodt geposuns are tased an detined Delegaton of Credt Authorty The delegaled powes e based on 2 Commilies spproach. For cesss saactionsd se par
dleation of uthoriy, aee comgleton of 3l fomslfas by he borower. a loan agresment s entared irlo with thi bommwer

Thie Cormpary. mrsasres, monilors and manages cedil sk at an irdividual botrower kel ond ot ibo portioho gl (e nanaatal borowars. The cradie sk Tor resid Barowers 5 manpged 3
the particho beve. Periodes andbesis ol he credd porifalio is conducled and necassany conecilve meatues ane gl niod.

The Comprny's currant cradil isk grading framawork cotnprises the follswing csegories

EEHDI__ = Description |Bl!i${nr recogaising exgected credid losses
|Edutation Laans Avemmar ECL hased on vintags data

S
Educatan lsuindice Loans: Iniemal raling mapsed with
Siage 1 High ouality assets ERIBIL ralings, cormesporaing probabisty of detauiis &
wesed wming CRISHL dafaull study

GME — Annpal Loss Rats

Stsge 2 Assals for which thare s sigriifsni Litestimes ECL
Increase in credl sk
Etage 4 Credil impaired assols Litekme ECL - Credli mipainag

The hoy alervants m calolvion of ECL s 83 follows:

PO - The Protabiity of Defdlt i6 an estimale of the fkginood of eefaul aver & given me herzan. & default may anly Gepocn at aecrain ime ovar the assessed peood, § the laciiby bas ool
bt pravicsly sackcogoisked and s el in the porticio. Tha PO kag been dotaminsd basad o0 histotical bebaaou of the back & rall mies Tor retail and comperative axtemal ralings for
carmmescrl financs:

EAD - The sstimaled cadil aapeeurs ol goinl of defaull

LG0 - Tha Loss (huan Delsul bosn aatimate of the loss arising in the siss whies 8 fefaull cicurs al o given lime, 1t beted on the Gffsrence balwarn e contraciual cash dows due and
hase ihal Ine lenoer wookd &xpect o fecens, noiuding I the realisalion of ary collaberal, It is veeally exoressed as @ porcemaga of the EAD, The LGD ia deisimingd based on valyabion of]
cafataraly and nar raleva e faonrs,




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Mates to financlal stalement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Ohperational risk

Oxperdtional fisk is e fuk ol 88 FE3ULng Trem nddaquals inletmal prodesges, people of systoms. tead, o from sxtamal svsrts. The Company fomeses on managemant and cantrol of
cpargiional nsks mugn & compranensya system of nemal contros and mendoning perermance al 8ash henslion agansl defned thresholds

Operaticnal isk management eompraos idanikeation and asssssment af nsks and conbols, naw products and process approval ramewssk, wedsoremant thrugh cperalionad risk incidants,
MmO INFERg N ooy rek incsRenrs ard mEgation theoggh process snd condtl anhan cemant

Liguidity risk
Limudity risk is he owren] and prspecive nskansmg out of an nenidy 1o meel linancial commaments as ey fall dus, Suough svails e cash fows oF Moough e sgle of asaeis st Taie rhe),
etlup. 1 intled os Doth ihe rsh of enéxgeclad miceases in e ceal of funmng on asset porticlo et approprisie: mabnities snd the rsk ol being unabla o Bquidats 3 position in & limsly manner
alA redsonable piks:

The Company managaa kquidey nakx by mamaning aulfciant cash and madketable saconties and by having acosss 1o fumBng theough an adequats smount of commBlen cradt es, Given he
mesd o fund doerse praducts, Ine Gampany moinising flexibAly in fundng by mantsning avalabdite urder commified credif bnes 1o mes! ahligations when dos #anagement regutardy
manksrs (e posibon of cash and cash oguivilints Wis-a-ve projecians. Astescmant of matwrly orofiles of Tnoncial assats and (nanciel Haoiilies inchiding cebt firancing mHans &)
hainte nance of Daluce SHeel liquidiy ales e conddered whils rviewing the Fyuigily pasitian,

Vi mairag Inuidity fgk in actordence Wil our ASsEr LIEbIy Management Prliny. Tres pabcy is framad as per the coment sgulatory guidelnes and s agproved by the Board af Diectars,
The Ase=r Lisgilily Banasgemant Folicy = raviawad penoacally (o incorporate changes a5 raqured Dy Bguiatony slpd alan oF (e resbgn he policy wilh dhapgas i (he eoonamic landscaps, The
Aol Lisbiny Commitug (aLCO) of the Company farmslalos and reviews stratagies and crovides guidancs for managamen) of bquicey ik wihin the tremawork \oid out in the Assel Lisbssy
Rianagamant Poloy.

The Company nas Re 41, B00 kakn undeawn lings of tledt as of March 31, 2022 a3 sgainzt Re 14,700 1ok aa of March 31, 2021, Trom s bankars fof warkng o2 pial cempiemenls
The Company hag the nght (odeaw upon these linas of cred besed on B equrement and 1erms of dizw down,

Exposwra lo liguidiy risk
The fodbren ase e delads of Campany's remaimng centraciusl malsises of lnenosl lblibes snd assets al e repoding dase. The amounis ane gross and undiscowsed

{Fs. in Lakh)
Contractseal cash Bows

March 34, 20272 Total -1 ywar 1-3 vasrs 3 -5 paars More than 5 years
Financial kabilites
Drerivative. linancal instourments a a = = )
Trade papables 341851 A416.51 - - -
Drabi s ounies 1,44 82722 5387847 45 6RA 23 2034841 4 80812
Rorronings (ofher than gt suctiliee) 7.80,167 75 7440008 140 303 15 75,2433 22.895.70
it fnancial histhies 76 53 &9 458 5y 15 555 98 17,071 B2 16,407 51
Total 5.16,394.61 1,58,357.50 2.04.056.37 1,412,764 54 4473613
Financial Assets
Denvative fnancial instruments 35099 - - - ol o
Cach and esh pauialants fd.ME.a1 Bl MR.E1 - = -
Ofhar Brank balanies 2604.58 el 95,38 - 250451
Licans T.B5442.80 1.07:639.85 1GR3 1AT 584,00 LIR01BY
I Etmsnts 127350 1.273.50 - . -
Trade rece b PR FLi R ] - - =
Diher financial 4sseis 35943 &8 75 24650 X585 10, 8
Tatal 8,53,419.20 1.77,230.50 1,57 S80:92 18T 57755 3,35 872.2%

[Rs. i Lakih}

Confraciusl cash fAows

March 31, 2021 Total 0 = 1 yaay 1=3 yoars 31-%years | More than 5 years
Financial liabilhios
Dlervative frsec ol msbomernis 18051 - . - 183 71
Trads paysbles 1454043 145813 - - -
Dbt secudics 87368059 T B0 R RUIEE] 4,008.00 4 486 54
Barrewinga isihed then debt aecurfies) 1.67.046.30 47 465715 TEE1BU TR 1259593
Ciher financial laoilites | I | R 247718 3. 3p8.52 336427 723040
Tetal 282,720.29 1,26 48520 F9,510.11 42.737.35 24,507 62
Financial Assolc
Cach sial cash egunalanis 1263825 42,538,25 = - -
‘CHher bank Balances 1,013,949 343,02 B70.97 - -
Lewars 47850786 1,07 24302 401 add 50 0% a7 8¢ 5F 072 37
Invesimenis s5{02.06 5,502 DE * = -
Othr Rrdncial assets 25946 (B} 3,45 17629 Fitidin)
| Tatal 527,921 40 1,55, T34.48 202,364,365 1IZETATE 57 94173

The gross inflows dischased i the above table represen the contraclual undiscounted cash Tows relating @ fnands abStan held (o ek, manegomen) pepnsen and wisch s Hof sy
elomad nul Uelore contrachasl oty

4 flri':f.

e ——



AVANSE FIMANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
hodes to financlal slatemeni for the year ended March 31, 2032

WAk e riak jLnterest rsk)
The Company i3 xpooed 0 IMIEMS! (918 1S o 1 haS Basets and labikies Based on foabing iressl rales a5 well The Comoany hae an appeound Assel ard Liabiiy Rzmagemn i Fodiy
WhLh smpowian: e Assel and Lianity Manogomant Commines (ALCO) to ssanss e intensst raba nish run by it and proside appopisie quicelines 1o the Traasiey 16 mandoe B gk The|
ALCO reviews the imerest rate rek on panedic basis and dacides on no asset profile and te appropriate unding mic. The ALCO reviews the inlares! rie gap slatement snd e inferest 1sis)
seasiliviy anayeis

Expozure fo inkorosl rale risk

The Campany's axphaures do imerest rtas on {inaneaal assels and foancial liabdfites are delslod in the Hquidity fsk management secion of this note

(Hs. m Lakh)

Paiulars Mareh 39, 2003 | Marech 31, 2021
Finanaial asdete

Flend-rate tnstfiimants

Tamm loans 48 643 31 15.8233.7%

WWEEITBNG in drnasang bil 1 2FEED =

Floatng-rate Instrumonis

Term loars 4 2301533 2.77.260 88

et et i rmelual fuind - 5 503 06
Tadal £ T2 ATIN 2,90 5RO 59
Finaninl liabidities

Flaad-rate insbrurients

Non conveddible debentures 1,20, 74509 TOLBDG. 21

LCommarcal papss 247851 -

Floating-rate instruments

Lonn frarm Banks & Fr 2,28 855 B0 126,566 57

Extamal carmmeartial oHTwAng 11,005.30 10822 2%

boon convertibls detssmums < #6,553.30
Total 361,095 44 234,487 41
Fair walue i lysis Tar Floating. instrumarts

The sensiijlly anabeis below have been deicmined based an exposurs b Lhe iermst 1S128 for finaneisl inslnaments ol the and of the reporkng pared 2nd thie slipdaled change taking pas
afibe beginning of the finandal yaar and ekl carstant thraughoul 1he repariag perod in cass of imtumanes et rave fiasting rates.

¥ intares) rates had boen 10 basis points higher or louwsr and ol cthar variables were constant, the Gompany's profl bofors tax waidd have changst by the Toliosing:

. Marchdt,2032 2 |  March3i209) |
Wil 100 g higher | 100 by lower | 100 Bpz higher | 100 s Iower
Fhaating rate lvans
Turm laans 420018 {4230.15) 2T t2.772.51]
Ivwagiment in munal fasg - - 5500 55.02
Floating rafe bomowings
Lo from Baks & Fi 2, 26866 ) 22588 (126567} 1,465.67
Ewlemal commescial bomowing {105y THEDS TREZ 105G 22
Mon corveribie debentuiés . = [AE5.63) 26563
= 1,851, 4 [1,851,84 148101 -1, 181.01
v} |Farex rick
The Company' s nocging poicy only elows far sfeciye hedging relafianahins & be considered s hisdges 85 per the rdevant Ind 45 Hedge sfiecivenses js deisimied @ e heaption of the)
Pedge ralationshig, End Wolgh paredic ofecpactve afizelvanean apssesments 8 enaurn thal an aconcems eelalionahip eosls Geteen e heilged e and heidging mssumens. The
Comnpany eniers i nedgy ialonenios wiene e eliedl leme of Se hodgng matrument match wilh the bemma of he hadged dem, and su a quakintive ard quantéatie assessmen ol
ellectmmess is parfonmed
Cash Flow Hedge
The impact of the hedging Ingtmament aid edoed beim an the balineg GRear
Hadaing natrument
) [R=. in Lalih]
1 I'.'h.lnge in the tair
walun im Hhe
Carrying Carrying f::ﬂ"d hedging
i amaunt of amount of Lina i the “n'r:.: instrument used
Particulars Hlokiuiin hedging hedging balanea 1 sirike price =5 the basis for
insiruments g irurnents shaoot e hedgin recognising
Assils flabiltins HiEaT 3 hedge
InMactivenass «
| {peafi) Tiszy
March 31, 2022 e =
M ST < Cross cumency swap 1104500 EETT - | Defvaine 73,66
Flnancial
i ity
|March 31, a0zt -
INR USD - Cross curgncy shap 11,045.00 - 190,31 | Desrvalive Ti64 -
Faancal
. | Bt ruen i
Hedged liem
e (LS
Fartleulars [Chasngs [nthe  |Dash fow Cosiaf Forelgn
value Biehge resaim Thindglng a5 at Climrency
of hedgod dem |83 &t - (Debity Manstary hems
umed Credit Translation
a2 the bas:s far R esiarv
FEaagnEing
hedge
Inaftactiviness
Mareh 31, 2022
xiEinal Commensial Banewings MBS I 2337 - &
March 31, 2021 4
LExiee st Commana)l Bommawinos 4250 (B 68} = WA
The impac] of The cashilow bedisas inolbe comprebensig |oome:
Parbculars = | Hedging grins or losses moognised
in other
e fiEnsdue income
Mazch 39, 3027 | Wareh 31, 2021 |
13681 10761
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement far the vear endod March 31, 2022

The hakaw disclozuces renuired purstsant to the RBI master direclions and clroas ae proparad aftar gring effecr regiired to comply withs the extant
provisions of Reserve Bank of India directions including framework: on Prudsnnal Masmes and other related circilars

[Rs. In Lakh)
Disclosure requiremants as per RBI crcufar dated March 13, 2020 having reference number REI2049-20/4170 , DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.Na 1022 10.106/2019-20 a8 per para 2 of Prudential Flear of ECL
Asset Classification as per Assat Gross Carrying | Loss Allowances. { Mot Carrying Amount Previalons Diffarence
REI Norms. Classificatio | Amount as per | (Provislens) as required as per | between Ind AS
n as per KRB Ind AS requirad under |nd IRACF norms 108 provisions
Norms A5 109 and IRACP norms
Performing assets
Standard Stene 1 45281427 178276 4,51,031.51 1La1126 {28.50)
Slage 2 18.887.72 1.840:40 18,048 32 1.387.23 57
Subtotal A TEE11.99 373216 4,69,070.82 3,150.4% 53367
Non-Performing Assets
Subsiandard Stage 3 1,862 41 1,008,861 B54 40 1E6.24 82177
Dioubiful
Ligle 1 year Slage 2 143230 868 52 56268 87960 (10,28)
1o 3 years Stage 3 Z8d2.04 1,760,068 1,062 38 1,796 9% 136,503}
More than 3 yedrs Stage 3 72.83 3548 36.35 4861 (h13)
Subtotal for doubitful 4,327 .47 2,663.06 1,664 41 272440 (61.34)
Loss Assets Skage 3 - - - - -
Other dlems such as Stage 1 - - . -
guaranieas, kaan
commitrnants, &g, which ang m
the seope of ind AS 109 but | Slane 2 : = ‘
not covered under comenl
Incorme Rooognition, Asse] Siags 3
A R ge - - -
Classification and Provisioning
{|RACP] norms
Subtotal - - &
Tatal Slage 1 4 52 814,27 1,7B2.78 4,61,061.51 1.811.26 (28,58}
Slage 2 19.907.72 1,248,490 168,045 32 1,387.23 56217
Siage 3 E.183.88 I671.07 2E18.81 Z010 64 760,43
4,78,001.87 7,403.23 4,71.538.64 6,105.13 1.294.10
Notes

a. The Compasy has made provision for expected credlt 1955 a5 per the requirements of the Accounling Standards which is highar 1fan that required by
Ihe sloresald RBI circular,

Disclosures on COVID19 Reguiatery Package - Asset Classification and Previsioning, in terms of RBI clreular REVZ045-

20220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2020-21 dated April 17, 2020 ("REBI Circular™)

Period Reapective amounts in Respective Provisicns made in Frovisions adjusted during the
SMAJoverdue calegorias, amount whore |tarme ol paragraph 5 respactive atcounting periods
whare the maralerm/ assat of RBI Circular against stippages and the residual
delerment was extended, in classification provisions in terms of paragraph 6 of
terms of paragraph 2 and 3 aof benefits s RAI Clreular
REBI Circular extended

Cverdoe &5 on Febraary 29 3516847 351657 17583 G276
2020
Irlerest on nteresi

(i} Ins digiht of the MEnistey of Finance's circulay dated 23 Ogtaber, 2020, e Company has defermined mderest on imleres! for the morzioium gencd iom
1 Marth, 2020 to 37 August, 2020 aqgregating Rs. 32077 Lakh payable to ol customers hawing an suistanding balance =5 an 20 Fabrusry 2020 of
upka Ra. 2 erare and arespective of wiipther lhese customers have avaited moratorum or nol.

The Compary has given gradit | rofunded the sbove amourits 1 the reapestive sUstames account and has fed a claim as per aforesaid. orejlar and
have recorded = recaivehla fromy govamme:t

{H) Furier, irlight of the recent Supreme Court Judgeniont daled 23 March 2021 and R Circuar dated 7 Aprl 2021, the Company Has sccounted 2
lisoility for Rs. TA.2ZE Lakh towards ouatamers nines than fhose coverad above in respect of inlersst on inerest | ponal inlerest charged by the
Comparny. Ouf af thiz, Ra. 1963 Lakh is in respect of ass goed portfolio and hence accounled ag rectverania from the aasianess. Balance amsint has
baen charged to the Statement of Prodit and Loss.




AVAMNSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Hotes to financial statemeant fo_r the year ended March 31, 2022

41 Disclosure pursuant o Reserve Bark of India Clrcutar DOR NBFC (PO} O, Ne102003.10,001 /2078-20 dated dih November 2019 paraining 10
Liguihity Risk Managemen! Framewoek for Mon-Banking Financial Companies
Qualitalve Disclosurs on Liguidily Coverage Railo (LCR)
The Liquiity Coverags Rata (LOR) Is 4 global minimum standard 0 measure the lguidly position in a stress scepanic. Reserve Bank of Indiz
Intreduced LCR reguiremsent for a8 depesil laking NBFCs and non-deposi tsking NEFCs wilh ap assaet slze of Rs.5.000 crore and aboye 1ot leas than
Rs 10,000 crora. LCR will promale meafisnce of MEFCE to potentisl liquidity disruptons by ansinng that they have sufficent High Quaiity Ligujd Assel
(HELA] to survive any acule fouiddy stress scenano lasting for 30 daya, HOLA refers o ihe category of liguid assets thet can be readily sold or
immediately converted inlo cash al @ s Joss of value or wsed as collatzral to oitaln funds na range of siress scenarios. LA |5 calculsted by dhding
the stack of HOLA' by its toial ret cash outflow over & 30 day calendar periad

The Company ag adoplad he Beuddy fak management irmework as seauiced wider RB| gudelines. It ensures & sound and robus! liquidity risk
maragement systen) by maintaining sullicent bgedity throvoh inclusion of 3 cushion of uencumbersd, Bigh queallty Fguld sesot (o withetaed a range of
siress events, including those involving the kess or impairment of both unsecured and secured funding sources. The Board of Directors have delagated
respanzitidy of balance sheel Liquidity Risk Management to the Asset Liabiity Committes.

The LCR i calculated by anading & Company's stock of HOLA by 15 total nal cash oufflows cver a 30 -day stress penod, The guidelnes lor LER wee
effective frorm 15t December 2020 wilh e mewmum LCR o be 30%, progressively increasing, il reaches (e requirod hevel of 100% by 15! December,

2024 as Tollows:

s December 1, | Decamber 1, December 1, Dgcember 1, Decamber 1,
g 2020 2021 o2 2023 2024

Iinimam LCR 0% 50% (il B5% 009

Im artiar o determine HOLA, Company considers Cash and Back Balances, meesbreent in Traasury bl without any haircut, In ooder o determing ne
cash autilows, Company congiders botal enpected cash gutflow minus todal expected cash inflows for the subsaguent 30 celendnr days. AS por
guidalings, siressed cash flows & io be computed by assgning a predafined siress parcertage bo the overell cash inflows (i.e. 115%) and cash
outfioows {with hairsut of 25% ) Nel cash outllow cver next 30 days s compuled as siressed culflows less midmum of siressod nflows, 75% of
siressed outfiow. Accordingly, LER would bo computed by dividing Company’s stock of HOLA by it's total net pash autfiaw,

Cash nulllow undar securad whnlesaks funding includes eondrachual ngalions uingler Tarm loang, ME‘;D;I_ Interesl pavable wiihin 30 days, Ouillow undaer
other coliateral requirement, the Company congiders the loang which ase calla ble under rating downgrada triggsr up te and including 3 neteh
cawngrade. Quifnw under ather conieaniesl fusding abliaotians prmary nclidss sifliew on sceaunt of cuerdrawn balances with Barks and sundry
payables. In order o detarmme Inflows from fully performing exposures, Company considars the contraciua! repayments from parforming advincss in
naxl 30 days, Olher Cash inflows includes imestments in quid muioal funds, and othar sseete which a7e matuing within 20 days.

Quantitalive disdoswra on Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) Tord year andead 31 March 2022 i given below:
Quarter ended 31-Mar.22 ____ Ouarter ended 31-Dec-21 Quiarter endod 30-Sep-21 Quarter 2nded 30-Jun-21
Unweightad |Weighted value-{Unweighted value-|  Welghted value- | Unweighted value{ Weighted value. |Unweighted|  Weightad
values average average average average average valun- valua-ovarage
average average
High quality liquid assets
1 Total high quality liquid 64,322.09 54,322,098 34,387,768 51,36%.21 38, 765.38 28,110.27 56,733.70 5237452
|assots
{i} Cash & Bank balances €3,048 58 63,043,508 33,077.38 33,077,382 2816860 8. 7REE0 | 2rET254 2T ET254
1) Imestmant in T-Bills 1,273.50 1,273.50 = - - . - -
() Investment in Mulus! Furd . = 2151038 18,283 83 11,000.79 QISOET | 2906116 24,701.,28
Cash outflows '
2 Teim loans 3,566,350 4, 10005 166164 1,933.89 3,263.96 3753 56 5491 48 6,315,320
3 Dabis - F 15433.62 1714730 254404 X047 | 6 F4T.03 20,759,438
4 QOther contraciual fonding 2183347 2523032 1333190 15.551.62 2.662.08 308141 Faioio 324467
chiligations
5 Other non financiad liabilitias 525 A4 29 3E2 43 439.79 340.02 401.37 4ib.2¢ 477.508
Total cash outfiows 26,084.95 20.974.71 30,824.40 3545276 0.920.06 1025807 | 3547318 40,794,156
Cash inflows
T Leans 5,904,685 442863 8, 1456.96 6485047 7486 35 561477 9 297 BG B, 9549 64
B Infiaws from fully periarming - - - - 3 - - -
exposures
9 Cthar cash mflows 22.78 17.08 = = - = = -
Tolal cash inflows 5.927.63 #4,445.72 9, 145.56 6 859,47 748635 5 E14.TY 9,292,486 5,965,614
Total adjusted value Total adjusled value Tolal adjusied value Tobal adjusted value
Total HQLA 04 222.09 51,361.21 38,118.27 52,374.52
Total Nel Cash Cutfiows 25,528.99 28,593.29 4/642.30 23,624 .52
|Ligquidity Covarage Ratie (%) 251.96% 179.63% B20.95% 154.84%
Note | The ligures above are excluding inferest
42 fu] G o 1 =
(A5 stipulated InAnnexsre 4 of Cireular Mo, DNER (PD] 0O Mo, Q0203 10.0012014-15, dated November 10, 2014)
421 Capital Risk Adequacy Ratlo ([CRAR):
Particulars Az at Mareh 31, | As at March 31,
2022 021

Capital Funds
hlet owriod furdds (Ties | Capilai) 96.054.74 Q0404 73
Tigr i Caphal 5.063.45 G,6548.71
Tatal capital funds 1.02,038 1% ar o6 a7
Taotal risk weighted aszate | sxpasuras 444,455 57 205525 70
e of capital funds to rish weighled assels | exposures
Tize | capal 2161% 348
Tiew 11 cagrad 1.36% TN
Total capital funds z.lg*;% R Lk




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Hotes 1o financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Exnposuros:

1 Exposure to Real Estate
Sectar

As at March 37,
2022

Ag at March 31,
2021

a) Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgoges-
Lending fully secured by mongages on reskiential property that & o will bi occuphed by tha
borrawes of that i renfed| (Individua housing loans up o Bs. 15 kh may be shown separaiely)

(i} Commercial Real Estailo-

Lending secured by morigages on commersal real estates (office buldings. retall space, mullipurposs
commercial pramises, mulll Tamily residential buldings, muti ienamaed commarcial premises.,
indusirial or warghouse spacs, hotels, land dequisition, develapment and construciion, 2io.).
Exposure would alao nclude non-fund based (MFB} imits;

(Ui} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures-
) Regidental,
by Commercial Res Estata.
b) indirect Exposure
Funel based and non fund based exposwes an National Housing Bank (NHEB) and Housing Finance
Companmes (HFCs).

45.523.67

J5.146.05

Total Exposure to Real Estate

4552367

35 146.05

Maota ;

In fine with RBI Circular dated Seplember 8, 2009 on Classification of Exposure as Commarcisl Real Estats (GRE) by Barks, sn axposurs weuld ba
clogsified as ‘CRE' only if the rapaymaent of loan is dependent on ine cash fliows genarated from real esiale assat (e.g. rentslsisalas procesds),
Howsver, the prmary source of ftepyments in cose of Edutalion Insbilulon Loans are the cash lows gensrated from business oparslions of such
insliludlons (=g, Tullon Fees | School Fees eic) and nol lrom rentats | sale proceeds. Hence, such exposures shall not be categorised as 'CRE' and

accandingly relevant disclosurs for FY @020-21 & F7 2019-20 is baing reflectod and meported as HIL"

s at March 31 Az at March 31
N Ex o . »
posure fo Capital Markel 2022 2024
(i} direct mvestment in equily shaces, conwverible bonds, converliale debentures and unids of eguity-onested
muluz! fends: the corpus of which iz not exciusively Investod in corporate debt;
{ii} agvances against shares | bonds ¢ debontures or other sscwrities or on clean basis fo individuals for)
imegsiment in shares fincleding 1PCs ! EB0Ps). converlible bonds, converibée debentures, and unlls of equity-
orienied mutual fends:
fiil) advances for any olher purposes whore shares or converiitde bonds of convedicle debentures or units off
eguily ofdentad mulusl unds are Bken 85 primary security;
fiv] advances for any othes purposes o the extard secured by the cofalerl secunly of shares o corverlible
bords or corverlible deberbwres or unlts of eguity orented mutosl funds e whers the primary securty other
Ihan shares { converlible bands ( convertinle debeniures £ units of sgudy oriented maoles funds does nod fully
cover the advandes,
[v) secured and ureacured advances lo stockbrokers and guaranieqs ssued on behall of sigckbrokers and ==
markel makers;
{vi) foans sanclioned f0 conporales aganst (ho security of shares | bords | Uabontures or tlhsr sacurilios o on .
dlean basis: for meeting promaters contribution lo ke aguity of new companes (n anbcpalion of raising
TESOUICES,
{vii} bridoe loans 1o companies posing| expecied equily Bows / issues, -
(wiith all onposures o Venture Capilal Funds (both regsiered and unragisternd)
Total Exposure ta Capital Market F; =
il Details of finarcing of parent company products
IV Detils of Single Barrawar Limit (SGL] | Graup Botrower Limd (GBL) exceedead by the NEFC - -
¥V Unsecured Advances
Amount of sdvances given against intangibde securliss - i
42.2a Derivatives
Interest rate swap As ot March 31, | As at Mareh 37,
2022
The notional principal of swap agreameants 11,049.00 19, 049.00
Losses which would ke mowred of counterparbios faled o il their obiligations under the agreements 2088 .

Collatoral roguirad by the MBEC upon entarisg into swaps
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AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Neotes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Rs. in Lakh]
424 Particulars
’ Amount
Liabilities side outstanding Amount overdus
{l] |Leans end advances availad by the nen-banking Ainancial company inclusive of interest acerued therean but not
paid:
{a||Debentures
(i} Hecured 1.713,061.01 -
(8%,686.63) )
(=} Unsecured {othaer than fzHing within the meanieg of public depouts) 7.885.02 -
(7.651.98) )
()| Deferrsd Cradils = -
) )
{c)| Term Loans 2.24,865.61 -
{1,24,578.49) (=4
{d}| Intar-comarate loans and bomrowing - -
% L)
{=)| Commercial Faper [nel of unamerised drscount) 2,4T8.51 -
= )
(9 Cther Loans (Please Spacify)
Esternal commercial borrowing 1,005.50 -
[1D0,522,25) =)
Cash Credils 2,000.00 -
{1.558.08) &)
Mote - Figuees in brackel represenls numbers pertsining 1o previous year
Asgats side Amount cutslanding
(M} |Broak up of Loans and Advances Including bills receivables (other than those included in (V) below):
(a)| Securad 1,83,001.69
{1.48,155.11)
[bH Unsecurad 2,905,999 98
{1,562 AR, 3T)
(W] |Broak up of Leased Azsets and stock on hire and othor 2ssets counting towards AFC activities:
{a}{Lease assels moluding lease renlals under sundry debtoes:
(i} Financial Lease -
1
i) Dparating Lesss -
N
{b}|Slack on hire inciuding hire charges under sindry doblors! =
(i} Assals on hire )
(1) Repossessad Assals ¢
(&) Dther loans counting lowards AFC actlviies: i)
[I) Lesares whers aesets have been repossessed -
¢
1) Loans other than {a) above 2
S ]
J J




AVANSE FINAMC|AL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statoment for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakh)
W} |Break =up of Investments:
ta)| Gurent Invesimants:
1. Quotad:
{i} Shares:
{a) Equity -
{b) Preference H
[
(i) Debentres and Bands _l'
]
(it} Unibs of Mulaal Funds -
(5.502.08)
(v} Govemment Securnties &
i)
(v} Githers (Plesse Specily) z
=)
2. Unguoded: :
{1} Shares: )
&) Equity F)
)
(b} Preference =
=)
{il| Dabemures and Bonos Y
=
{iii} Units of Mutual Funds :
. )
{iv) Govarnmeni Seoaliies 5
=)
{v) Treasury Bills 1.273.50
=)
{ui} Oithers (Please Snecify) §
-}
b)fLatg Term |nuestments;
1, Cungad;
{iy Shares
(=) Equity +
-
k) Preforance o
i}
(i) Debanlures and Bonds )
(i Units of Rutusd Funds I_'
£}
(i) Govemment Securities -
L]
[} Others (Please Specily) -
k]
2. inguated;
|i} Shares:
{a) Equlty i
(-
by Prefersncy -
o]
{ii] Debeniures and Bonds e
{iiiy Linets of Mutosl Funds [j:l
=
() Government Secunies -
[}
(v] Chears %
]
(V) |Borroweor group — wise classification of assets finanaed as in () and (01} above: {Rs in lakh)
amaunt net of provisions
Category Securod Unsecured Total
{a)|Related Paifias
{1} Subsidkanes + - ,
: (= = i=)
(i} Companies in the same group = - E:
=) -} 0]
[y Qiher refated paries n T i
(= f=) (-
[rliCsnarthan reiated partiss 1 HA0018Y 285 000,88 A4, 78001.87
(1.46,168.11) (1,52 866.37) (2,998,022 48}
1.83,004.B9 285,000,093 4,79,001.87
(1,46.356.11) {1,52,865.27), [2,99.022.48)
Lass, Provision for ner-pariorming assets 4.684.22 21a0 TA40323
[2.306,58) [3,031.27) {5.507.85)
Trial 1,78,317.67 203,280 93 4,71 598,65
i {1.43,248.53) {148.835.10) (2.9 084 83)
.".‘
.I'l
. =)
W AT




AVANSE FIHAMNCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Notes 1o financial statement for the year endad March 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakhj |
(V) |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities {bath quotod and unguoted):
Market Valuel | Book Value 1H,n1
Break-up ar fair | of Provisions)
Category walue or NAV
{a} |Related Parlies
(i) Subsidianas , .
) ]
fil) Companies in the same group
(i) Other related paras - .
- -
(b} |Other than related parties 1,273.50 1,273.50
[5,502.06] {5.600.00)
Tedal 1,273.50 1,273.50
(vil} |Other Information:
Particulars R& in lakh
[a¥|Gross Mon - Perarming Assels
{1} Related Parties i
(=)
(b} Cther than related parias B, 18088
{5.136.75)
{b]|Met Mon — Perdorming Assels
{i) Related Fame= £
)
{ii) CHher han relaled parlies 2.518.81
{1,275.33)
{1 Azsels acqured in salistaction of debt 5
]

42.5

Disehosure on reslrucluning persuant o Resarve Bank of Indla notificalion ONES.CO. PO, Mo, 367/03, 1001201314 dated 23rd January 2014 as at March 31,

Previous years figures are dannied in bracksts
¥ £

202
(Rs In lakh)
Type of resteucturing
Low credit | Credit Impaired Total
nsk &
Assel classification details significant
increase in
credit rish
M af borrowers I0E - 20500
Resiruchmed acooimts 35 onfpnl 07, 2021 Amount outstanding LGB 1T - 10,6707
Provision tharean B44.03 - 840.03]
Mo of Borrwers 242 - 242,00
Fressh restiretunng Suring the year Ammount ouisianding 762184 - 752184
Pravizion therecn 17287 - 172870
Mo of bamowers - = -
Upgradations to restructured standard catagony during the year Senaunt sutstanding - -
Privdsion thereon - ]
Restruciised steiadard adyances which canse i ahiscUbigher povigionig |70 O DOMOWES ’ b 2
and  or addinores! sk welght al the end of the FY and henoe need not be Amound outstanding -
shown 8% mstruchred sandard advances at the beginning of the next FY Prrdstan thorsan N K
Mey off borrensers - - -
Diovwngradation of restninhirsd aceaunts during the year Amount oulsianding = =
bl _ Prowision thesaan - -
Me of bosrowers = 2
Yi'rite offa-of restuetured acoounts durkng the year Amount oulstanding - -
Frovision thereon - - -
Mo of bomowers 450 - 450.00
Restruolwred acoounts &5 on March 31, 2022 Amount outstanding 18202061 - 18 2920
= = Provision thereon 2,568,173 - 2 56873

Type af Borrowsar

42.B.fi) Infarmation Qe rquired by Reserve Bank of Indla Cirelsr en Reselution Framework for COVIDH$9 related Siress dated 6 August
Framewark - 20 Haspiution of COVID-15 related stress of Individuals and Sirall Businesses dated § May 2031

2020 and Rasalution

1AL
Numbet of accounts

where resolution plan

{8

exposura o

acoounts mentoned

Qf {B], agaregate

amount of debt

(G

=]
Additional funding
sanstioned, if any,
including batween

{E}
Increass in
provisions on

has been at A} before that was et oF the accourl of the
implemented under | implementation of conwertad inlo ilenand implamentation of

B 'IhI! windaw the plan ather se¢urities A the resolutlon plan
Personal Loans 214 5,778.42 . 508.50
Carpoeale Parsons
of which MSMES - - -
‘MSME<25cms 23 12,353 13 - 1.970.13
s = - .
Tatal 450 18,1419 - - 2.568.73

" MSWE toaas comprise of loans given to-dertan borower clesk based on the assassmant parfarmed By the Manageman! which indudes fingrelal [aratdn,
~HUZARAS par i o= of the barwer




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Hotes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

[Rs. in Lakh)

426101

Dtalis of outstanding amount of securinsed asaets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the Company and the lofal amount of exposures retained by 1he
Compaiy &5 on March 31, 2022 Iowards the: Minimum Belenfion Requi remenis (MR

[Ra. in Lakh)

5r. Ne.

Particulars

Asat
Mareh 31, 2022

As at
Mareh 31, 2021

Mo of SFVs sponsored by the NEFC fof secunibsation fransaciions

O badancy sheal exposwes

* Flest Loss

* CHhers

O Balance shesl exposures

* First Loss

* Others

Aumount of exposures 1o securlisalion ransactions ofner than MRR
'Off-balance sheel pxposimes

|}y Expasure 1o awn secunisalions

* First loss

* Others

11y Expasiee o thind pary secuntisations
* First lpgs.

" ivets

On Balance sheet exposues

1) Exposuse o own secunbsations

* Flrst lazs

* Others

i} Exposurs to-third party securilisations
" Firat loss

* Others

Tatal emount of secunib=ed assetls as per books of the BPVs sponsored by Ihe NBFC

Tolal amownl of exposures retained by the NEFC to0 comply with MRR 35 on the daie of balancs shee|

&
48,858.51

T, 76090

25355
453.55
453.55

K]
T933.37

258816

2,588.16

1.594.61

27610
278.10
276.10

Dietails of assignment ransactions undenaken by NBFE during the year

(Ra. in Lakh)

Particulars

As ot

As at
March 34, 2024

Na, af accounds

Agaregate vaiue (net of provisiang| of accounts sold

Apgregate comsideration

Addithonal censideration realisad In respact of accowils transfamed in earfier yaars

Anaregate gain / loss ower el book vadues

March 31, 2022

No ascignemant rancagtions were undanzken during the finendial yesr 2029.22




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Metes Lo financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Rs. in Lakh}

Investments

Particulars

As al March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

(2)
]

(i)

{iir)

(b}
fi)
(i}
(5}
fiv)

Walue of Investments
Gross Valug of Investments
(&) in India

(b} cutside India
Provision for depreciation
{a) in Imdia

(b} outside India

et Value of Investimentz
{a) in Incha

(b} outside India

Movemenl of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening balances

Add ¢ Provisions made duning the year

Lass : Writa-off / wrile-back of excass provisions during the year
Closing balance

1.272.50

1274 50

5 50206

42,9
L

U]

)
v)

v

Additional & Miscellaneous Disclosures:
Registration oblained fram ather financial sectar regulatars

Company has nol regleterad with oiher financial sector reguiators excapt with Insurance Regulatorny and Development Authority of India (IRDAL

Disclosure of Penalliss imposed by RBI and other regulators

Ratings assigned by credit raling agencies and migration of ratings during tho year:

FY 2021-22

Rating particulars Rating Agency

Rating assigned

Short Term Debt Programme

Commercial Paper CARE Limited
Long Term Debt Programime
Mon-Comvertible Debantures Brickwerk Ratings India Put. Lid.
CARE Limited

Loan Faciity CARE Limited

CARE Al+

BWR A4
CARE &+

CARE A+

P 2020-21

Rating particulars Rating Agency

Rating assigned

Short Term Debt Programme
Commercial Paper P,
Lang Term Debt Programme
MNan-Canvertible Debentires Brckwark Ratings India Pl Lid.

CARE Limitad

CARE Limilad

Loan Facilily

MNA

BW/E A+
CARE A+

GARE A+

Het Profit or Lass for the perlod, prior period items and changes in accounting policies:
These ara ao prior perod ilems and changes inacoounting polisies impacting fet profit for the year,

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue Recognition has not been postponed on account of pending resolution of significant uncenainies in resgact ol any revenug streams of the Company.

Provisions and Conlingencies

(R% in lakh)

Braak up of 'Provisions and Comntingencies' shown under the head expenses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

Far the Year Ended
March 31, 2022

For the Year Envded March
3, 01

Provisions for depreciation on Irvestment
Provision towards NPA | ECL stage 2

Provision made fowards Income Lax

Oiher Provision and Contingencies [with datails)

Praovigion for stendard asgels | ECL atage 1 & stage 2

{480 35)
298345

186873

141579
1,682.85

81599




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Nates to financial statement for the vear ended March 34, 2022

{Rs. in Lakh)
{vil) [Draw Dawn from Reserves il Wil
(Vll) Concentration of Deposits, Advarces, Exposures and NPAs
{a}  Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NEFCs)
Tolzl Deposils of twenty largest doposiiors (Bupoas in laih) [ A
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Tolal Deposits of the NBFC M [}
{2} Caoncentration of Advances
Total advances to branty largest borrowers (Rupees in lakh) 15, 104.66 16,637.89
Percenlage of advances 1o twenty lamgest borrowers o tolal sdvances of the NEBFC 315% 5.69%
i) Concentration of Exposures
Tolal exposure to twenly largest borrowers f customers (Rupess in lakh) 15, 530,54 18,959,860
Parcaniage of Exposures to twenly largest borrowers | cuslomers o totzl exposure of the NEFC on 2.84% PETC
borrowers / customars
{d} Concentration of NPAs
[Tatal expasirs to top four NPA aceounts (Rupees in lakh) 120600 | 1,276 60
{e]  Parcentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector
Sector As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Aqriculture & allind actvilies - -
MEME 43.20% 26 4T%
Conporate borrowars 18.18% 11.65%
Unsacured personal lnans 0, 18% C43%
Qther Services 1115 061
- (Fs in lakh}
(IX) |Movement of As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
NPAs
(I} |Mat NPAs I Mal Advances (%) 0.53% DA44%
{1} |Movement of NBAs (Gross)
{8} Opening balance 513675 5200.82
{B) Additions duning tha year 237825 310440
() Reductions during the yoar (1325.12) [3263.47)
{d) Closing bakance 6180 88 5136.75
(i} |Movement of Mal NPAs
{a) Opening balance 127538 234519
{by Additoms duning the year 2948.83 1665.40
() Redustions during lhe yaar (903.46} (323626
(d) Closing 251880 127532
batange
(] 1!u'ln'mmenln‘l provisians for NPAS fexcluding pravisons an standard assels)
(=) Opaning balance 306142 244563
(b} Prowvisions made during the vear 231.32 143800
{c) Write-off | writo-hack af excess provisions (42768 {£2.21)
{d) Ciosing balance 3671.08 388142




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 34, 2022
[Rs. in Lakh)

x

()

Disclosure of Customers Complaints

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 =

MNo. of camplaints receved during the year 101 208
Mo, of complainis redressed during the year 104 207
Mo, of complamis pending at the end of the year 1 1

Disclosure in respect of derivatives, securilisation transaclions, consolidated finencisl stalements. overseas asseis (for those wilh joint ventures and subsidiaries
ahroad), off balance sheet SP\s sponsored are not appiicabile for the year tothe Company.

(Disclasurs requirements as per RBI circufar daled November 04, 20119 having reference number RBI2019-20/88, DOR.NBFCIPD) CC. No 102103.10.001/2019-
20 regarding Guidelines on Liguidity Risk Managament Framewaork)

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both depeshs and borrowings)

Sr. No. MHumber of significant counterparties Rupees in Lakh % of Total Deposits % of Total Liabilities

1 26 2.98,604.78 Mol Applicable 87 29%

Top 20 large Deposits (Rupges in Lakh and % of total deposits)
Mot applicable. The Company being a Sysiemically lmportani Mon-Deposit {aking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, does|
nol acsep public deposits

Top 10 borrowings (Rupees in Lakh and % of total borrowings)

Rupees in Lakh 1,66, 128.67
% of 1olal bomowiings 51.95%
Funding conceniration bases an significant instrument / product
Sr. Na. Mame of the Instrument / Product Rupees in lakh % of Tolal liabilitios
1 Term loans from banks 2,14,265.81 A8,32%
2 Term lnars from Fls 13.978.01 3.165%
3 MNon- Convertible Debeniuras 1,08, 000,00 24 53%
i Subordinated Qabt 7.A00.00 1,69%
5 Commercial Papar 2,500,00 0.56%
4] Extaral Commamal Borowings 11,048 08 249%
Stock Ralios:
Sr. No. Mampe of the Instrumant ! Product (% of Total Public Funds % of Total Liabilities % af Total Assets
a Commercal Papers 0.70% 0.56% 0,26%
b Mon Covertible Debntures A2.52% 26.22% 21 36%
c Oiher Shoet Tenm Liatdlibes 36.21% 29.14% 23.74%
d l_ong Term Assets 118.23% 86, 14% TH.34%

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk manage ment

The Beard of Diractors 1= respansible for establishing and reviewing fne ALM & Risk management Pelicies. Towards this end, the Board has eslablished an ALM
Committes (ALCQ), which has been delegated the sutharity 1o manage funds and to malch the Assets and the Liabilities in terms of their maturities and interest
rale sensiivifies, so thal the risk arsing from such mismatches can be contained within the deslred limit, Similady, the Board has also constituted Risk
Managemanl Committes (RMC) for the effective supendsion, evaluation, monitoring and review of various risks, including quidity risk. faced by the Company.
ALCO amdd RMC meatings =re conduciad sl a fraquency which i warrantan from Ume to ime with minimum frequency of once n a quarer. The board reviews
the minutes of the ALCO & RMC meetings and additonal summarized (nformaltion on-a guaderly basis. I necessary tha Board alse mecommends e actians that
ara in the best interest of the compary.




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Noles to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(s, in Lakh)

(X1

43

Other statutory information:
Tha Company does nol have any Benami property, whess any proceeding has baon initisted or pending againg! the Gompany for holding any Benami praperty

The Company has not been declarad a5 a Willul defaukter by any bank or financial Institution or other lendes.

The Company dogs not have any charges or satisfachon which is yet lo be reaistered with ROC beyond the slaiutory pariod,
The Company has not advanced o lbaned or invested funds 1o any ather person{s) or entityies), mcluding foreign enfiies (Infermediaries) with Lhal
understanding that the Infermediary shall:

(@) direclty o0 indirectly lend or inves! in olhar persons or entitiss identified in any manner whatzoover by or on behall of the company [Utimate Beneficiares) o
(h] provide any quarantee, security or the like to or on bahalf of the Ulbmate Benelicianes

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recordad in
writing or othermisa) thal the Company shall

(a) direclly or indirectly lend or invesl in olher persons or eniliies fdentified In any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Fary (Uliimats
Beneficianes) ar

(&) prowvidde any quarantes, security or 1he like on behaif of the Litmate Benaficianas

The Comparny has not iraded or invasted in Cryplo currency or Virtual Surrency during the financial year.

The Company has complied with the number of layers presciibed under clause (87) of settion 2 of the Act read with Gompanles {Restriction an number of
Layers) Rules, 2047
During the year the quartedy retums or statements of cumenl assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institulions are in agreemant with the boaks of]
AcCoUnts.
The Company doss not has any such transaction which s nol recorded in the books of aceounis that has been sumendered or disdosed as income during 1he
year in the tax assessmeants under the Intome Tax Act 1957 (such as, search of survey or any other rebevan! provisions of the Income Tax Acl, 1981

Key Financial Ratios :

Ratio Year ended Year anded

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital 16 dsk weightad assets ratio (CRAR 23.96% A2.74%
Tear | CRAR 21.67% 30.49%
Tier I CRAR 1.35% 2.26%
Liguidily coverage ratio 251.56% T042.53%

The Company do not have any transactions with stuck off companies.

covip
The outbreak of the COVID=-13 pandamic had led Lo 3 nalionwide lockdown in Apnl - May 2020, This was followed by localised lockdown in areas with significant
number of COVID -10 cases. Foliowing the sasing of lockdown measures, there was an improvement in sconemic aclivity in the second hall of facal 2021
Since then, our country axperienced two waves aof SOVID - 19 panderic following the discovary of muluant ceronavirus vanants. These waves lad 1o temporary
resmposition of lceslised | regional lockdown, that were subisaqguantly lifted,

The extent 1o which the pandemic may mpact the Corparation’s results, including impairmen! on financial instruments, will depend an fulure devalopmenls,
which are uncertain, inchuding amongst athes things, any new infarmation concaming the serverity of the COVID - 19 pandemic and any action fo contain {5
spread or mitigale its Impact, whethar govemment mandsted or elecied by us.




AVANSE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

44 Previous year's figures have been rearranged / regrouped / reciassifiod wheraver necessany 10 comespond with the current year's classification |
disclosures

45  The financial stalements were approved for issus by the Board of Direclors o May 03, 2022

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial slatements 1 to 25
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